
  
LINCOLN PARK PLANNING COMMISSION 
DATE CHANGED: June 17, 2020 at 7 p.m. 

(postponed from June 10) 
 

REMOTE MEETING VIA ZOOM 
Call:  1 646 558 8656  
Web:  www.zoom.us 

Meeting ID 827 7951 1947   
Participant ID is # 

AGENDA 
I. Call to Order 
II. Roll Call 
III. Approval of Previous Minutes 
IV. Approval of Agenda 
V. Old Business 

A. Public Hearing: Waste Management Zoning Text Amendment 
B. Waste Management Zoning Text Amendment  

VI. New Business 
A. Public Hearing: Rezoning – 1805 JA Papalas 
B. Rezoning – 1805 JA Papalas 
C. Site Plan Review: 3476 Fort – Massage Therapy 

VII. Policy Review and Discussion  
A. Proposed Site Plan Review Chapter Draft 
B. Redevelopment Opportunities in Lincoln Park Package 
C. Sign Revision Rollout 

VIII. Education and Training 
IX. Reports from Department and Other Boards and Commissions 
X. Public Comments 
XI. Comments from Planning Commissioners 
XII. Adjournment 

 
The City of Lincoln Park will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aides and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired 
and audio tapes of printed material being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon 
seven (7) days prior notice to the City of Lincoln Park. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aides or services should 
contact the City of Lincoln Park by writing or calling the following: The Building Department, 1355 Southfield Road, Lincoln Park 
MI 48146; 313-386-1800 ext. 1296 

http://www.zoom.us/


 

First Zoom PC Meeting – 1 of 1 

City of Lincoln Park Planning and Development 

Zoom Planning Commission Meeting 

The Lincoln Park Planning Commission will hold a remotely-conducted Planning Commission meeting. In 
keeping with Governor Whitmer’s Executive Order 2020-15 and subsequent extensions, this and all future 
meetings will be held in a manner which permits two-way communication between the public body and 
the general public. These meetings will strive to meet both the spirit and the letter of the Order; patience 
and forbearance with these new processes are kindly requested.  

• Audio observance of the Planning Commission meeting is available by calling +1 646 558 8656 and 
enter the meeting ID, which can be found on the Planning Commission Agenda. Those calling in 
will be able to hear the audio of the Planning Commission meeting, and their microphone will be 
muted.  (Please note, that for a brief period of time, when calling in, the caller’s full telephone 
number may be visible for those using the Zoom platform.   We will endeavor to manually, yet as 
quickly as possible, alter what is visible to just the last four digits of the caller’s telephone 
number.)   

• These meetings may be streamed at the City’s regular YouTube page, or at a link which is provided 
on the meeting agenda. The stream may lag the meeting by as much as 20 seconds. Streaming 
may not be available for each meeting, but the audio observance will be. 

• Chair Kevin Kissell will call the meeting to order and then the Planning Consultant will be 
facilitating the meeting and will call on individual members of the Planning Commission and staff 
participants to speak who “virtually raise their hand,” which will occur through the Zoom platform 

• Callers wishing to give public comment may call in before the meeting starts and wait in a “virtual 
waiting room.” When the Commission accepts public comment, in the order calls were received, 
the Planning Consultant will identify the caller by the last four digits of their telephone number and 
ask them if they would like to make a comment.  

• The agenda of future meetings may be reordered to take public comment at the beginning of the 
meeting.  

 



 

Ordinance Amendment Proposal: Waste Management – 1 of 2 

City of Lincoln Park Planning and Development 

Ordinance Amendment Proposal: Waste Management  

April 14, 2020 
 
 
The City of Lincoln Park Zoning Ordinance does not specifically address waste management requirements 
for a development.  The Ordinance merely requires trash receptacle locations to be shown and the method 
of screening, if applicable (§1296.01(f)(2)(M)).  Issues of waste management have recently come up during 
the site plan review process; for example, a site’s conditions may not allow for the placement of a 
dumpster due to a small parcel size. Furthermore, depending on the site’s use, an operation may not 
generate enough waste to warrant a dumpster. Therefore, waste management will vary depending on the 
site. Regardless, the Zoning Ordinance should have a clear requirement for trash management so that 
developers know what is expected and so that the City has the legal justification for any requirements.  
 
Best Practice Review 
 
Staff reviewed ordinance excerpts from the City of Ypsilanti, the City of Ann Arbor’s Unified Development 
Code, and the City of Raleigh, NC’s “Solid Waste Collection Design Manual.” Generally, the ordinances 
require waste accommodation to be shown on site plans; to be screened; to be orderly and sanitary, and to 
be accessible. The Cities of Ann Arbor and Raleigh both specifically address the use of curb carts rather 
than dumpsters to handle commercial waste, with provisions requiring review and documentation.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The City of Lincoln Park’s Ordinance can provide for greater clarity in terms of waste management.  Below 
is proposed language for two amendments: (1) to the site plan requirements in §1296.01(f)(2)(M); and (2) 
adding a section in §1294: Provisions Relating to All Districts, outlining trash receptacle and dumpster 
requirements (to be §1294.41). 

Proposed Amendment to §1296.01(f)(2)(M) 

(M) Trash receptacle locations and method of screening, if applicable. Waste Management Plan that 
includes trash receptacle locations and method of screening, if applicable. Trash receptacles and dumpsters 
must conform to the screening standards outlined in §1296.03(g), and all trash receptacles and dumpsters 
must conform to the standards and requirements outlined in §1294.41. 
 
Proposed §1294.41 

1294.41 TRASH RECEPTACLES AND DUMPSTERS 

(a) No outdoor trash storage area may be in any front yard or any required side yard setback which is 
adjacent to a street, unless there is no alternative as established by the Planning Commission. In no 
instance may any trash receptacle or dumpster be located within or block a designated parking space. 



 

Ordinance Amendment Proposal: Waste Management – 2 of 2 

(b) Any outdoor trash storage area must be limited to normal refuse which is collected on a regular 
basis and must be maintained in a neat, orderly, and sanitary condition. 

(c) Adequate vehicular access must be provided to such containers for truck pickup either via a public 
alley or vehicular access aisle which does not conflict with the use of off-street parking spaces or access to 
nearby principal buildings. 

(d) Where vehicular access is restricted due to space or other constraints, curb carts rather than 
dumpsters may be permitted by the Planning Commission if it will result in no reduction to the public 
health, safety, or welfare. 

(e) Commercial and residential developments may enter into a shared refuse collection facility 
agreement with one or more neighboring businesses. A copy of this agreement must be submitted as part 
of the site plan and must specify the location and maintenance responsibility for the shared facilities. 



 

Zoning Amendment Review – 1 of 5 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

1805 Papalas 

Zoning Amendment (Rezoning) Review 

 

Applicant Ankur Patel  

Address 1805 J.A. Papalas  

Date June 17, 2020  

Request Rezoning: MBD to GID  

Recommendation Approve Parcel 1; Deny or Table Parcel 2  

 

REQUEST 

The applicant wishes to rezone two parcels on the north side of Southfield Road, immediately west of the 
I-75 and Southfield Road interchange, from Municipal Business District (MBD) to General Industrial District 
(GID). The two parcels are currently vacant, and there is an existing hotel adjacent to both parcels.  
 
This rezoning request reverses a rezoning granted to the applicant in 2019. Both requests were made in 
anticipation of a proposed multi-use development including lodging, foodservice, and offices. The 
applicant wishes to include a medical marihuana growing, processing, and provisioning facility to the mix 
of uses as a result of the City’s recent move to permit these new uses, which are restricted to the General 
Industrial District. It is important to note that the rezoning, once accomplished, means that all principally 
permitted uses and those permitted after special approval could occupy the site, and therefore important 
for the Planning Commission and, later, City Council to approve this zoning amendment only if it finds the 
entire range of uses acceptable.  
 
The proposed Green Tower Development anticipates including restaurants, bars, and day lofts. The propsal 
indicates that Parcel 1 (Parcel A of Lot 1 of “Lincoln Park Industrial Subdivision”) will host the 5-story, 
multi-use development, and Parcel 2 (Lot 3 of “Lincoln Park Industrial Subdivision”) will host a testing lab 
and transfer facility.  
 
It is acknowledged that the narrative requests a “conditional rezoning,” but the application is for a 
traditional rezoning and no additional conditions have been proposed, which would be required for a 
conditional rezoning. Planning staff has confirmed in writing that the application will be considered as map 
amendment (rezoning). 
 
 
 



 

Zoning Amendment Review – 2 of 5 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Criteria for Review 
The Planning Commission and City Council shall at a minimum, consider the following before taking action 
on any proposed amendment: 

(1) Will the proposed amendment be in accordance with the basic intent and purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance? 

Exhibit 1 at the end of this document shows the zoning of the subject and adjacent parcels. The 
purpose of the General Industrial District is below, per §1286.01 of the Lincoln Park Zoning Ordinance. 
The proposed medical marihuana growing, processing, and provisioning facility is a general industrial 
use, and it has adequate access by both road (Southfield Road and I-75) and railroad at the subject 
property. 

“The intent of the General Industrial District (GID) is to permit general industrial uses to be located 
in desirable areas of the City, which uses are primarily of an intensive manufacturing, assembling, 
compounding, processing, packaging, assembly, treatment, and fabricating character, including 
large-scale or specialized industrial operations requiring good access by roads and/or railroads, and 
needing special sites, or public and utility services. Reasonable regulations apply to users in this 
District so as to permit the location of industries which will not cause adverse effects on residential 
and commercial areas in the City.” 

This condition is met. 

(2) Will the proposed amendment further the comprehensive planning goals of the City? 

Exhibit 2 at the end of this document shows the future land use designations of the subject and 
adjacent parcels.  The Future Land Use Map in the 2019 Lincoln Park Master Plan designates the 
subject property as “General Commercial.”  The description of the “General Commercial” future land 
use category from the 2019 Master Plan is below.  All adjacent parcels to the north and west of the 
subject property are designated as “Industrial.” The proposed use requires the GID zoning designation 
for medical marihuana growing, processing, and provisioning; the proposed accessory uses are 
consistent with General Commercial uses.  Furthermore, the site will comply with strong 
redevelopment and landscaping standards through the site plan review process. 

“Main commercial designation along all major corridors; intended to permit maximum flexibility of 
use in conjunction with strong redevelopment and landscaping standards.” 

This condition is met. 

(3) Have conditions changed since the Zoning Ordinance was adopted or was there a mistake in 
the Zoning Ordinance that justifies the amendment? 

The Lincoln Park City Council recently approved a rezoning of the subject property and the parcel with 
the existing hotel facility on June 3, 2019.  The request was to rezone the property from General 
Industrial District (GID) to Municipal Business District (MBD) for anticipated restaurant and office uses.  
Since that time, the City has approved a referendum to permit marihuana growing, processing, and 
provisioning in the General Industrial District, however, and the request at hand is to revert back to the 
orignal GID zoning designation to allow these uses in addition to the previously desired lodging and 
restaurant establishments as permitted by §1284.03b. The rationale for originally designating this area 
as industrial most likely stemmed from its location at the confluence of the rail line and I-75. This heavy 
transportation infrastructure is necessary for manufacturing and other related uses, and much of the 



 

Zoning Amendment Review – 3 of 5 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

area has indeed developed to support such uses.  The area to the south of the subject property along 
Southfield Road (M-39), however, has an asset of over 60,000 average annual daily traffic, and here 
the I-75 interchange can also function as an asset to commerce as well as industry.  Thus, reclassifying 
the subject property back to Industrial does not so much correct an error; rather the subject property is 
suitable for either a commercial or industrial designation. 

This condition is met. 

(4) Will the amendment correct an inequitable situation created by the Zoning Ordinance, rather 
than merely grant special privileges? 

The amendment does not grant special privileges; rather, it reflects a refinement in the use of the 
locational assets of the subject parcels.  The property is well-suited for both commercial and industrial 
uses, both of which the proposed development includes.   

This condition is met. 

(5) Will the amendment result in unlawful exclusionary zoning? 

The concept of “exclusionary zoning” applies to residential land use. 

This condition is not applicable. 

(6) Will the amendment set an inappropriate precedent, resulting in the need to correct future 
planning mistakes? 

The regulations for medical and recreation marihuana facilities are new for the entire State of 
Michigan, and this proposed development is the first of its kind in the City of Lincoln Park.  Ensuring 
that this initial proposal meets all established standards and goes through the proper procedures will 
set the proper precedent for future developments. 

This condition is met. 

(7) If a rezoning is requested, is the proposed zoning consistent with the zoning classification of 
surrounding land? 

All parcels to the north and west of the property are zoned GID, and parcels along Southfield Road are 
zoned MBD.  The subject property is well-served by both industrial and commercial uses.  

This condition is met. 

(8) If a rezoning is requested, could all requirements in the proposed zoning classification be 
complied with on the subject parcel? 

The General Industrial District schedule of regulations is shown in the table below alongside the 
relevant approximate dimensions of the subject parcels.  Parcel 2 (the proposed testing lab and transfer 
facility) does not meet the minimum lot area requirement. It is noted as a courtesy that the conceptual 
drawings provided do not show compliance with setback requirements on Parcel 1, but this is not a 
matter for rezoning consideration.  

 Required Parcel 1 Parcel 2 
Minimum lot width 100 ft 185 ft 208 ft 
Minimum lot area 43,560 sf 49,895 sf 21,695 sf 

 



 

Zoning Amendment Review – 4 of 5 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Parcel 1: This condition is met 

Parcel 2: This condition is not met. 

 

(9) If a rezoning is requested, is the proposed zoning consistent with the trends in land 
development in the general vicinity of the property in question? 

Due to the subject property’s unique location at the confluence of both a rail line and I-75, it is well-
suited for both commercial and industrial uses.  The commercial uses along Southfield Road and the 
industrial uses around the property are compatible and consistent with the proposed rezoning request. 

This condition is met. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Lincoln Park Planning Commission request the Lincoln Park City Council to 
amend the Zoning Map such that the zoning designation assigned Parcel 1 described herein is changed 
from Municipal Business District (MBD) to General Industrial District (GID). 

 

  



 

Zoning Amendment Review – 5 of 5 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

EXHIBIT 1: Zoning 

  

 

EXHIBIT 2: Future Land Use 

  

1 

2 

2 

1 



 
 

 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST - SUMMARY 
 
GREEN PARK TOWER 
PAPALAS DRIVE 
LINCOLN PARK, MI 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, we are requesting the Zoning Map of 
the City of Lincoln Park be amended to conditionally rezone the Parcel A of Lot 1 located on Papalas 
Drive just NE of the intersection of M-39 and I-75.  

DESCRIPTION 
The owner, Nick Patel, proposes to develop a 5-story, (96,169 square feet) Multi-Use Development 
structure that will include, as a primary use, Medical Marihuana Grow, Processing, and Provisioning 
Facilities. The proposed Green Park Tower development will also include Restaurant, Quick Serve food 
Establishments, Bar and Grille, and Day Lofts. 
The parcel is currently zoned Municipal Building District [MBD]. The applicant recognizes that the 
current zoning classification does not permit the use of Medical Marihuana related businesses; however, 
given the desire by the owner to proceed, we hereby propose a conditional re-zoning to General 
Industrial District [GID] consideration by the Planning Commission and the City Council. 

The conditional re-zoning request is to allow, by way of Special Approval application, the use of  the 
marihuana related businesses as follows: 

Grower Facility    2nd, 3rd, 4th Levels 48,000 SF 

Processing Facility    Basement Level  16,000 SF 

Provisioning Facility   Ground Level    5,000 SF 

 

In addition to the uses shown above, the development will also include the construction: 

Sports Bar    Ground Level    5,000 SF 

Deli and  
Quick Serve Food Establishment s Ground Level     4,000 SF 

Bar and Grille    5th Level  8,000 SF 

Day Lofts (Lounges / Meeting Rms) 5th Level  4,000 SF 

Offices     5th Level  4,000 SF     

 

The supporting preliminary drawings show a parking scheme that would rely on a proposed shared 
parking agreement with the adjacent Hotel establishment. 

 





HANDI-CAP HANDI-CAPHANDI-CAP HANDI-CAP

GIOVANNI LAVIGNE

LICENSE:      1301040247

REGISTERED ARCHITECT

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

SHEET No.

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

V
IG
N
E

41
00

0 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

, S
U

IT
E 

35
0 

EA
ST

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
I 4

83
04

58
6.

24
2.

45
25

gr
ou

p 
llc

ar
ch

ite
ct

s a
nd

 p
la

nn
er

s

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHOR CLAIMS ALL
COPYRIGHT

PROTECTIONS

Pr
oj

.#
 Y

Y-
M

M
D

D

G
R

E
E

N
 
P

A
R

K
 
T

O
W

E
R

Jo
hn

 A
. P

ap
al

as
 D

r.
Li

nc
ol

n 
Pa

rk
, M

I 4
81

46

OWNER REVIEW
03-10-20

JAT
GL

REZONING PACKAGE
03-13-20

Scale: NTS

LOWER LEVEL

2

AS1.0 Scale: NTS

FIRST FLOOR

3

AS1.0

Scale: NTS

SECOND FLOOR

4

AS1.0 Scale: NTS

THIRD FLOOR

5

AS1.0

Scale: NTS

FOURTH FLOOR

6

AS1.0 Scale: NTS

FIFTH FLOOR

7

AS1.0

LOBBY/ELEVATOR

BLOOM ROOMS

BLOOM ROOMS

BAR & GRILL

PATIO

DAY LOFTS

GROW SUPPORT

MARIHUANA PROCESSING

PROVISIONING SPORTS BAR

DELI

TERIYAKI

SHARED

LOADING

Scale: 1" = 20'-0"

SITE PLAN

1

AS1.0

9

13

9

9

8

9

9

19

J

O

H

N

 
A

.
 
P

A

P

L

A

S

 
D

R

.

60'-0" WIDE

S
O

U
T

H
F

I
E

L
D

 
R

D
.

20
4'

-0
" W

ID
E

OFFICES

ADJACENT HOTEL

2
0
'
-
0
"

2
3
'
-
0
"

1
9
'
-
0
"

1
9
'
-
0
"

2
3
'
-
0
"

1
9
'
-
0
"

1
9
'
-
0
"

GREEN PARK TOWER ON JOHN A. PAPALOS DR.

PROPOSED 5-STORY MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
LOT AREA: 60,338 SQ. FT.
GROSS BUILDING AREA: 98,008 SQ. FT.

2

4

'
-

0

"

SPORTS BAR

ENTRANCE

DELI ENTRANCE

DELI PATIO

SPORTS BAR PATIO

CONSOLIDATED RAILWAY

1
9
'
-
0
"

MARIHUANA PROVISIONING

ENTRANCE

TERIYAKI ENTRANCE

LOFTS ENTRANCE

SITE PLAN

AND FLOOR

SCHEMATIC

AS1.0

MECHANICAL

DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURE

20'-0"

5
'
-
0
"
 
C
O

N
C
.
 
W

A
L
K

186'

8
8
'

186'

8
8
'

0' 20'10'5'

GREEN

GARAGE DOOR TO

SHARED MARIHUANA

SERVICE LOADING

25' SETBACK

1
5
'
 
S
E
T
B
A
C
K

2
5
'
 
S
E
T
B
A
C
K

2

5

'
 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

50' OHW SETBACK

50' OHW SETBACK

5'-0" STRIPED WALK

SERVICE ROUTE

6'-0" CONC. WALK

5
'
-
0
"
 
C
O

N
C
.
 
W

A
L
K

OFF-STREET LOADING

ZONES

STAIR

STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING.  PARCEL CONTAINS 1.14 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO RIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
70%%D 30' 00" W. 288.84 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71%%D 58' 38" E. 132.60 FEET; THENCE S. 18%%D 09' 20" W. 194.22 FEET;  THENCE N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60%%D 51' 04" E. 95.66 FEET; THENCE N. 65%%D 17' 37" E. 37.25 FEET; THENCE S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
29%%D 08' 37" E. 183.41 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND RESTRICTIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING AT THE SW CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 AND PROCEEDING THENCE N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAYNE COUNTY RECORDS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS RECORDED IN L. 100 OF PLATS, PAGE 26,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 1 "LINCOLN PARK INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION", CITY OF LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION GREEN PARK TOWER PARCEL



GIOVANNI LAVIGNE

LICENSE:      1301040247

REGISTERED ARCHITECT

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

SHEET No.

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

V
IG
N
E

41
00

0 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

, S
U

IT
E 

35
0 

EA
ST

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
I 4

83
04

58
6.

24
2.

45
25

gr
ou

p 
llc

ar
ch

ite
ct

s a
nd

 p
la

nn
er

s

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHOR CLAIMS ALL
COPYRIGHT

PROTECTIONS

Pr
oj

.#
 Y

Y-
M

M
D

D

G
R

E
E

N
 
P

A
R

K
 
T

O
W

E
R

Jo
hn

 A
. P

ap
al

as
 D

r.
Li

nc
ol

n 
Pa

rk
, M

I 4
81

46

OWNER REVIEW
03-10-20

JAT
GL

REZONING PACKAGE
03-13-20

Scale: 1" = 20'-0"

SITE PLAN

1

AS2.0

TESTING LAB

SITE PLAN

AS2.0

17

PROPOSED TESTING LAB

BLDG AREA:  3,192 SQ. FT.
LOT AREA:  21,536 SQ. FT.

ADJACENT HOTEL

CONSOLIDATED RAILWAY

TESTING LAB
2,048 SQ. FT.

TRANSFER
FACILITY
1,024 SQ. FT.

DUMPSTER

ENCLOSURE

1

9

'

-

0

"

2

5

'

-

0

"

2

J
O

H
N

 
A

.
 
P

A
P

A
L

A
S

 
D

R
.

60
'-0

" W
ID

E

6
4
'

64'

3
2
'

32'

2
5
'
-
0
"

0' 20'10'5'

15' SETBACK

2
5
'
 
S
E
T
B
A
C
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN AS RECORDED IN L. 100 OF PLATS, P. 26 WAYNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3, "LINCOLN PARK INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION", CITY OF LINCOLN PARK,

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY RECORDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION TESTING LAB PARCEL



GIOVANNI LAVIGNE

LICENSE:      1301040247

REGISTERED ARCHITECT

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

SHEET No.

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

V
IG
N
E

41
00

0 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

, S
U

IT
E 

35
0 

EA
ST

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
I 4

83
04

58
6.

24
2.

45
25

gr
ou

p 
llc

ar
ch

ite
ct

s a
nd

 p
la

nn
er

s

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHOR CLAIMS ALL
COPYRIGHT

PROTECTIONS

Pr
oj

.#
 Y

Y-
M

M
D

D

G
R

E
E

N
 
P

A
R

K
 
T

O
W

E
R

Jo
hn

 A
. P

ap
al

as
 D

r.
Li

nc
ol

n 
Pa

rk
, M

I 4
81

46

OWNER REVIEW
03-10-20

JAT
GL

REZONING PACKAGE
03-13-20

GRAPHIC

SITE PLAN

A1.0

Scale: NTS

GRAPHIC SITE PLAN

1

A1.0

PROPOSED GREEN PARK TOWER

EXISTING ADJACENT HOTEL



GIOVANNI LAVIGNE

LICENSE:      1301040247

REGISTERED ARCHITECT

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

SHEET No.

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

V
IG
N
E

41
00

0 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

, S
U

IT
E 

35
0 

EA
ST

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
I 4

83
04

58
6.

24
2.

45
25

gr
ou

p 
llc

ar
ch

ite
ct

s a
nd

 p
la

nn
er

s

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHOR CLAIMS ALL
COPYRIGHT

PROTECTIONS

Pr
oj

.#
 Y

Y-
M

M
D

D

G
R

E
E

N
 
P

A
R

K
 
T

O
W

E
R

Jo
hn

 A
. P

ap
al

as
 D

r.
Li

nc
ol

n 
Pa

rk
, M

I 4
81

46

OWNER REVIEW
03-10-20

JAT
GL

REZONING PACKAGE
03-13-20

GREEN TOWER

PERSPECTIVE

A2.0



GIOVANNI LAVIGNE

LICENSE:      1301040247

REGISTERED ARCHITECT

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

SHEET No.

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

V
IG
N
E

41
00

0 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

, S
U

IT
E 

35
0 

EA
ST

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
I 4

83
04

58
6.

24
2.

45
25

gr
ou

p 
llc

ar
ch

ite
ct

s a
nd

 p
la

nn
er

s

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHOR CLAIMS ALL
COPYRIGHT

PROTECTIONS

Pr
oj

.#
 Y

Y-
M

M
D

D

G
R

E
E

N
 
P

A
R

K
 
T

O
W

E
R

Jo
hn

 A
. P

ap
al

as
 D

r.
Li

nc
ol

n 
Pa

rk
, M

I 4
81

46

OWNER REVIEW
03-10-20

JAT
GL

REZONING PACKAGE
03-13-20

GREEN TOWER

PERSPECTIVE

A3.0



GIOVANNI LAVIGNE

LICENSE:      1301040247

REGISTERED ARCHITECT

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

SHEET No.

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT:

V
IG
N
E

41
00

0 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

, S
U

IT
E 

35
0 

EA
ST

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
I 4

83
04

58
6.

24
2.

45
25

gr
ou

p 
llc

ar
ch

ite
ct

s a
nd

 p
la

nn
er

s

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHOR CLAIMS ALL
COPYRIGHT

PROTECTIONS

Pr
oj

.#
 Y

Y-
M

M
D

D

G
R

E
E

N
 
P

A
R

K
 
T

O
W

E
R

Jo
hn

 A
. P

ap
al

as
 D

r.
Li

nc
ol

n 
Pa

rk
, M

I 4
81

46

OWNER REVIEW
03-10-20

JAT
GL

REZONING PACKAGE
03-13-20

GREEN TOWER

PERSPECTIVE

A4.0



From: Leah DuMouchel

To: glavigne@vignegroup.com; ccooper@vignegroup.com

Cc: John Meyers

Subject: Rezoning - 1805 Papalas

Date: Friday, March 13, 2020 3:27:00 PM

Hello, Giovanni and Charles. I am receipt of calls from both of you inquiring about the
process for rezoning at the address above, so I thought I’d provide this answer to both.
 
You are requesting a simple rezoning – not a conditional rezoning – at this time, from
Municipal Business District to General Industrial District. The level of detail in the drawings
provided to John Meyers on 3/11 are sufficient, though please note that the last question on
the Petition for Rezoning asks for a narrative that I didn’t see included. Once the rezoning
fee of $600 has been submitted to the Building Department along with this narrative, I will
begin the rezoning review and place you on a Planning Commission agenda.
 
Thanks for your interest! Please don’t hesitate to reach out if I may be of further assistance.
 
 
Leah DuMouchel, AICP, CNU-A, NCI M&FC, FBCI
Principal
 

Beckett&Raeder, Inc.
Making Great Places for over 50 Years
 
535 West William St Suite 101
Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
 
Office: 734.663.2622
Direct Line: 734.239.6616
 
Petoskey, MI   231.347.2523
Traverse City, MI   231.933.8400
Toledo, OH   419.242.3428

Please visit us at www.bria2.com
 

mailto:ldumouchel@bria2.com
mailto:glavigne@vignegroup.com
mailto:ccooper@vignegroup.com
mailto:JMeyers@citylp.com
http://www.bria2.com/


{J.) 
~,,2'~,,,c 

M 'I I /\ .., 

City of Lincoln Park 

Petition for Rezoning 

P PC ~ - CXX) Q 

RECEIVED 
MAR 1 6 2020 

CITY OF LINCOLN PARK 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

I (we), the undersigned, do hereby make application to and petition the Planning Commission to amend the Zoning 

Ordinance and change the zoning map as requested. The following facts are shown as part of this application. 

1. It is desired and requested that the following described property be rezoned from 

Municipal Business District existing zoning district to General Industrial District 

proposed zoning district. 

2. The property, according to the City of Lincoln Park Comprehensive Development Plan of Future 

Land Use, is described as __ G_e_n_e_r_a_l C_o_m_m_e_r_ci_a_l ___________ _ 

3. The property sought to be rezoned is located on Papalas Drive between 

and NE corner of M-39 and 1-75 
-----------

4. The property sought to be rezoned is legally described as follows: 
PARCEL A, PART OF LOT 1 "LINCOLN PARK INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION", CITY OF LINCOLN PARK, WAYNE COUNTY. MICHIGAN, AS RECORDED IN L. 100 OF PLATS, 

PAGE 26 TO 30, WAYNE COUNTY RECORDS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT THE SW CORNEA OF SAID LOT 1 AND PROCEEDING THENCE 

N. 29• 08' 3r E. 238.75 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE S. 50• 51 ' 23• E. 79.13 FEET; THENCE S. 11• 58' 35• E. 165.46 FEET; 

THENCE S. 18" 09' 20" W. 226.45 FEET: THENCE N. 70" 30' 00" W. 288.73 FEET (288 84' A.) ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO TH~ POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PARCEL CONTAINS 1.383 ACRES ANO IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. _______________ _ 

5. The land area of this subject property is (square ft/acre) _1_.3_8_3_A_C_R_E_S ______ _ 

6. The property sought to be rezoned is owned by 

Name: ANKUR PATEL Address: \~'OS .J -A - PA-<-¥\LA-3 
City: _____________ _ State: ____ _ Zip: ___ _ 

7. Person requesting rezoning: 

Name: VIGNE GROUP 

City: BLOOMFIELD HILLS 

Address: 41000 WOODWARD AVE. 

State: Ml ---- Zip: 48304 

8. Basis of representation: Legal Representative/ Owner/ Option to Buy 

9. It is proposed that the property will be developed as follows: 
[see attached drawings] 

96,000 sf Green Park Tower Development 

Primary Use as Medical Marihuana Grow, Process, and Provisioning Facilities 

Additional uses include Sports Bar/ Restaurant, Deli and Quick-Serve Food establishment, Day Lofts -

(day lounges and meeting spaces). Roof top Bar andArille, Offices 

10. We attach a statement hereto indicating why, i o ~\ opinion, the change requested is necessary 

for the preservation and enjoyment of subst an operty rights, and why such ,change will not 

be~ p~~l:c, :~,:~• p, 'P .,::,,e-1-r~o¥--f.6..!.::,,.,...,at..- .,...,,,..,...,..2.ll;~...-,,µt1.=,;;;....."1-r-l~ef.i ~ .. ., ... 
Signature , ·, , . J,. • ~ i~ 1 .! ••• ,s 

.._ "- \,· • • • • ~ • • C ,, :-/ o(1'1(1'1 e c,ou 
"' • '-< i'-r,Y ;, . '• ,. ..• ,no. ,n t\1 

' < 0. ✓ ... ,. tt 
--- $ • .:-;, ",... • -:. . 

~=:r:,~ - . ~ --> ,✓,,-!:. .... Cl 

JIil ~ • • ~1·~ , ,.:,,I. ❖ ... 
., .,. - • , li C ... _1 . • 'I'- ',., , ,:,._ .... :-. . · . ._:: ~ 

' ~ ;.~ r.1 , C \~ ~ '. 



r~t :::::; \ 
~ ...... t. •"'-A•t 

•• 4 •,;·!~• 

.,.,,.,, 

,-. .-

• ,-;~,-- .. ': i-" 

/!~. 
';~ 

., 

' I 

•·. 

.•.·· 
,,a •• .- •• ' 

}··, .: ';:~ 
'.":_;j..,..:..,: 

.... - . 
• '!·,•· 

f ;~ • 



-.J'.>-ltti 

a~c;;1-►6~ D 

,;:oo .... 
~~~-= 

> 
>< 

~§12~ ..., 
> 

;~~ 
:a 
n 

i~ 
I!! 
:a 

I 
111 
n 
0 

,i z 

'" 
..... 

~ 
c3 C: 
:a 
> .... 
0 z 
..., ,.. 

~ 
> z 

►"" r 
..... 0 

~ 'f 
:a 

q "' ;:;. ::c 
:a 
111 
111 

' ,, ::c 
-~ > . :a 

I 
":c \?2~ 

•11: 
~ ~ "'o 

iA a & ~ § ; 

_,.,..._ 

--""'-" Ml M0Ur.>01 

<") 
C 

Bi 
~ 
~ 
;;J 
"' £: ;:: 
~ 
-< 

0N04 J..HY SJ N0U:)l"IW.SN;):) ~J 0350 38 !ON TIYHS 
H'OJ..V1 ldJONIX> S1-U "100J..Y1 101 :>M>M'd ONV 

:>NJ0111"18 1110H /ION JO 1d3::>'():) 0~ 

i.o,.,...,,.,.,,.....,$VW1 .. 
OJ.rO•aro1JrOCO.r1•"""aro 

lln:)6':tJiflOIP,J 
OIAYllll'fOOS,t•>o.M!Df'l"&1CJ 

0,/J,l.•...,~ 
OIIOtst• 0,.f •»-•cin-.clDIOlCt 

Oo,U•_,~ 
OIO"l,M•o,,,r, • :Df•-JOOI 

--- ----
Cit '4D:WIW-• w c»"COII_, 

"""""" ,11 -ID'DI>__.., 

. .. a 

SlU'ISl:J'IOl,I~ 

--- --- --· --· -
-IDl'll6'-

wtl.a:IIICJll:lftl.Sltl 

t,C 0, ~ IOI') Oil ffl(l)lff\l 
"'1)01111:nllllol.,.-,(II •CIM'"Cm-, 

'1at:I .. CM.1111Wsw.r.~"°°"'°"-o:a.a • 

~~~~~::t-c:=~::=-.:ini~-~ 
--

-·•--Jr;UQHIU .. ..--:11'1fJ..-Yl•--u:,r·-· I 

-- ~7.::CC~~=~~~~.m~ 

1'CJOIO-OCJrl'\'OlfWl~IOt,~J:JI'
, ...... "'°"lDWA_,,.,.....,_,.13"10oM"<1........,.n,a,ln-•""°'°""• ~'""°""'°' .. ~~p_..r.i,,.,.,,,=-oTG,tM t 

--0 ~-\I-~ IOU l5l?tul 011 ICltll lllf'lt .. IOI 0-. 
1011s-.,.n• D1:1:D1.uwm•••o<n»ar.i:DP11<1"11n;1>111111on 
,.._._ _ _, • .-min_,.OCJrl'\'CJOIU.OOIM f 

-·· 
-•~O.UOMOClllJ-Sl<G.r,fQ,IICOlEl[IIO,jm--, I 

QDIIQ'l\r'QIICCJtu::wro,, ... , 

~~=i:F.:•·u~'::S 
~ • .:S1iF:J:::Dall 5:!+E 1(111""1'1tlSYJJ)l(M1 wicolC'Cla-• 

QMIJQ11.IC.IOJl1)1()4 Ollla-OfttlG)I 
11,.__DOt.)IICII -•)IIDll>II''' 

,u:.,m 
~•4,tm )I;.•-..,., ll"C:N"IJOUOM •Ot.1'!'111 _, 

':;Hl"Mltt'MlW4 'lOf'ollO 
'°'°')II .UWl00 :Jr,.l,U ',:('; J:::\', "ltl6t 109'1 II CXIIIIC0:111 

(IIJ0,IJ'l"JlAl'QY"c:8IOS)On, lCll'r lnl>WW'<IOJJCI 

1lil:l:l.llfl0~-"" ... ll-"oort'J Qr lllWY. Sl Off" UIOr nr, ""'1,00:, U,,,,,,,1 
-·IOJIGI,-Dr //01-cJONl"'tm.H ""°W(IP, .... ) 

l.ll.lUJW•.tJO.IJC,Dt'II.DOI: UllrtYiU:..MM.llf 
J:IIOt,f Ull,-U, 'J.K.K-~ fD,<k Ul/NM ,.rt,tf.# 

:&~~?Ji~~~~i~ lfll:J:W11'l.D.UO ~-~~/tlXW\ I 101.JOJ/lr<I 
,u:Jl/'(,l,l,t41SO,,Oa,1 

SIOJ<IIDUIJ tl:Jltrd r,J ~ Q]SO,,/OIJd 

SHOUc&lOSlO 'tD!!'rd nt :>l«,ISIXJ 

VJ.VO HOUVWOUNOO~ 13'HVd XVI OlSOdOHd 
OH't' Sl~JIOIOHdt11 1:)VJHl'\S !lt-ll.lSIX) 



BENCH MARK: 
ARROW ON HYDRANT 
ELEV. ,. 95.50 

\ 
1.llSJ 

I $'\c. 

~ll.Y •• W. ll.Y •• W. 
RII IUK Rill tua 
T/Peu4 T/PIIUII 

t 
~ s 

---

acorn: @ 

SITE 

Sa/lllflOJI 

~ ,,,..... - '/C 

LOCATION MAP ___ _ 

NOSCA1£ --------
JOHN PAPALAS DR ·--i- ~~ 'y~ ·~ / 

I I :::::----,, 80 FT. WD • • .,., ~ ,l ~ • ..-~.....:, '<- -~ - r --·, f ~ / 
:~{:_,~~' :..;;. - ~ 

-----0--

FJJI. 
0 

~0-). 
~ 

s. 57'48'49" W. 
0.67' 

A 

BENO! MARK: 
ARROW ON Hl1lRANT 
El.EV •• 93.90 

LOT 3 

...... ,.., 
9\!:>' 

~:'i.oO -111111111 

- 7-zz.;_ 
'111K' 

~ 
; 
:::! 
'Cd Q:!i 
Ii)..: 
.,_ I&. 

;§a 
.._CD 

~ 
I g 

,,ft·' ;. 
IO 

~ 
w 
0 ~Ii .. 
p 
~ 

2: 

~ 

✓ 
0 

~~ I 
" /9'1.'" 

..... 
""" 

C.IIIIDTCIPOI 

,. ... , 
{~, 

t~ ( ~ i/f 'Y ~l 
t Y/2V ,,~ .. , 

.98T/C '<. ~., 
1il1' ~"'~ ~~ 

'C ·~' '. 1~~ ' 

PIPE LINE NOTE: 
MARA THON ASHLAND AND BUCKEYE PIPE LINE 
MARKERS LOCA TEO IN FIELD. EXACT LOCATION 
OF UNDERGROUND PIPE LINES:IS NOT KNOY,t,1, 
PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY CONTRUCTION, 
CONTACT "MISS-DIG" TO VERIFY PIPE LINE 
LOCATIONS. 

LOT J, "LINCOLN PARK INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION': CITY OF LINCOLN PARK, 
WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN AS RECORDED IN L. 100 OF PLATS, P. 26 WAYNE 
COUNTY RECORDS. 

~STA' 

IIUIIGl(XJll)n£CllllCAL 
EXACT LOCA'IICN AND DIP1lt 
rIFD!C!IIICALISNOTICIIOIII 

:♦ tc.C0 

T/t. C 

F.ul.F.LP. 

SU'. 

Ital 

ao 
0 
8 
'O' 

'ti 
1)(1 
1)(1 
-() 

A 
CD 

<Q,,--( 

0 

!>Cl ... 
9 

LEGEND 
IUYA'IIIII 

l'IP(IQAl,QlillJI 

--11:11,Mt 

KT-Pft 

FIUC)-,r

CAIQt-

IIIIIICU 

CAIL WI.IC& Cl. 

lt'IIIIWIT 

D'IIIISICIT-aT 

D1IJIVALW: 

CASVAL'lt 

-PPEIN:IIMl:III 

IINIA'IIOI-Pft IX---1111J11PUl•/Wf-
LQtTPUI 

-IUI. 
SDI 

111:E(l"•l"•IICAII) ----. ----- Slllll lDD 

---: ----- ~MYIDD 

-------a'IIIIIIMI 

---,--- ~IN: 

---. - ' --- 'l1lll'IGC IN: 

---.-•-----
------------ -CASIIMI ------------• -o--- FD1C1 

------- IIMAllDI-PPELNE 

---,----- -llLCIII.PPEI.IC 

•

JIIIRCINGDA'ISI 
BEF<H YOU DIG 

CALL MISS DIG 
1-mH82-7171. 

RIGHT OF WAY UNES. £ASDIDIT LINES AND UNDERGROUND UTIJTY UIES 
ARE SHOIIN FROU AVAILABLE REtalDS EXaPT WHERE f1QJ) [W)[NC[ 

~~ ~=-:=-'~gJ :J:..~:.DR 

-I TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY FOR NICK PATEL ~ iuRBAN ENGINEERING d.o. 
I!.! ¾ LOT 3 OF LINCOLN PARK INDUSTRIAL sue SCAI£ 1• = ~0• BY RE~!10N5-.- ' 8748 ALLEN ROAD l 
-I I CITY OF LINCOLN PARK 5 23 2005 A~LEN PARK,~MICHIGAN 48101 

WAYNE COUNTY - - , . 13131 3a3 • 5155 '. 
a1 § ~~ClilG~ ia-N EP an, : 

H-1'R01llC110NtlHIOOQJMOIIIS 
MINCCIR-
PIQ'Dm', 
ISIZPTII 
Ull:(111111.' -IMAT-
11111-CIRu..lllllALDA!Da. 
MD1DISCIRCC111DS-



~~N( 
gron~ 11-c. _____ AR_C_HITEClS--&-PLA-NN_ERS _______ _ 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST - SUMMARY 

GREEN PARK TOWER 
PAPALASDRIVE 
LINCOLN PARK, Ml 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, we are requesting the Zqning Map of 
the City of Lincoln Park be amended to conditionally rezone the Parcel A of Lot 1 located ion Papa las 
Drive just NE of the intersection of M-39 and 1-75. 

DESCRIPTION /lnl<ur 
The owner, .a&Patel, proposes to develop a 5-story, (96,169 square feet) Multi-Use Development 
structure that will include, as a primary use, Medical Marihuana Grow, Processing, and Provisioning 
Facilities. The proposed Green Park Tower development will also include Restaurant, Quick Serve food 
Establishments, Bar and Grille, and Day Lofts. 
The parcel is currently zoned Municipal Building District [MBD]. Th~ applicant:recognizes~that the 
current zoning classification does not permit the use of Medical Marihuana related businesses; however, 
given the desire by the owner to proceed, we hereby propose a conditional re-zoning to General 
Industrial District [GID] consideration by the Planning Commission and the City Council. 

The conditional re-zoning request is to allow, by way of Special Approval application, the! use of the 
marihuana related businesses as follows: ' ' 

Grower Facility 

Processing Facility 

Provisioning Facility 

2nd, 3n:t, 4th Levels 

Basement Level 

Ground Level 

4a,ooo sF 

16,000 SF 

5,000SF 

I I 

In addition to the uses shown above, the development will also include the construction~ 

Sports Bar Ground Level 5,000 SF 

Deli and 
Quick Serve Food Establishments Ground Level 4,000 SF 

Bar and Grille 5th Level 8,000SF 

Day Lofts (Lounges/ Meeting Rms) 5th Level 4,000SF 

Offices 5th Level 4,000SF 

The supporting preliminary drawipgs show a parking scheme that "'10uld rely ~n a propo~ed shared 
parking agreement with the adjacent Hotel establishment. 

VIGNE GROUP • • 1000 WOODWARD AVE.. SUITE 350 EAST • BLOOMAEtD HIUS. Ml 48304 • (586) 2<t2-l 52S 



ci 
"' 
~~ 
u: i 
~o 
::, .• 

~I~ 

\ 

li 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

--- ® 

~ 
® 

'iU : ------ I - I -, . t <o ..,: _ _L,,_,:--·. 
. l j - <><• .-® · - , .. ·@. I ® 

·-I"• . 

, . l f'1r. 

- ® ·fa.i i ""f ' ~ 
. ...., - •1 ----- ·-- - . - --,c:-:... ___ !T 

.:= - k, : 

GREEN PARK TOWER ON JOHN A. PAPALOS DR. 
PROPOSED 5-STQRY MO<EO.USE DEVELOPMENT 
l OT AREA. 60.338 SO FT 
GROSSBUILOINGAREA 1800950 FT 

.!.!: 

I 
j 

.!It~ 

"lfiY;;p,aff w - - ·-·-,;;:- ·-➔--...-.ourr ,·-·· t 
'-,.:::,,.: ~ , I 

"· rnrn . . @ 

., '\...,.. f,. CONSOUOATl"O RAil.WAY ~ 1--fi= """'-""""'-) 5'.L'.llJ!!c-OC 

I 
. <' ~ • ...,., -;:::.),. t...._,.1 "- 1......,-' ~ • ...,., ',j 

· u u rr7r ij f! 1r _JL ] 1! 1 JI II 

0 @ SITE Pl.AN ~ 
Cl"SCIIPO' Wrlf f'IIM ,o,,()t,....al 
,.,,,.,or,0111.MC11NP-IIQ.ISIIIMl.~.on-oruoa:t,,; 
,.Ml(, • 'IHf"c::tur'T( ~ .t$A(Q)IIO(l)«t. a <r1V11,.-«1'1l. 
• IN'CtlM1'~ IOtl: IIOlf" f'Nl~r~,tt 
,r'QIMC" M H U a.DIOl' ,S,l,&l lOtl MD ,wocamc-.o«l" II/ 
wcr,rc. l&l'lf'(J;14.0C K ICJl(HOl'SA.OLOI l HJ<r S 
#ltTJl' Ot" Lt;tlMnrt .oa'"1t f.l0 1r,rc. .V.nllrt IIOlfXS 
rrJI M" C. 1.11..a,,rrr. NMJ:".S: irorw w , .. n,u,: ~" 
10'#00" It: ,_f,l ,U,N..~ Kn'lfllC" Ol' S.-.O t 0I I 10#«" 
f'OMI Ol' ll'O#ll#JIC. "NfCD.WitA#iS,.14 AC:CSAAOtS....,-C'ltD~~ 
MDM'.fmcacws 

~ -- I .... "'-"'-
PA110, 

@ FOURTH FLOOR @ FIFTH F,:_~ 

~ --~ J ~ ~~ 9 
Wh J 

@ SECOND FLOOR 
I k•""' 

@ THIRD FLOOR 
' -~ 

""" 

'"'"' @ LOWER LEVEL A.SI _ _ Sf\ @ FIRST FLOOR 
I. -om 

=~:~1 
H 3 
1 I 

~ h ~ · t: 
c., r 
~ !I 
-~~ -· .._,TICl'Oa 

-~----

0: 
w s: ~ ';l 
0 O Q) 
I- ~ .. 
~ i ~ 
tr G. ,i 

~ ~1 
~ ~ :5 
0: 
(!) 

,wwonnc 

SITE Pl.AN 
AND FLOOR 
SOiEMATIC 

!DRAWN JA1 

O EotfO Ol. 

~ 

ASl.O 



o·zsv 

l!) QJ)()lH:,) 

l'l'I'~ 

NV1d 3lJS 
8\/7 !lNUSll 

l lUl !)MM 

10 

""""'"""' N _.. N 'tJSIYJ,1.1)00'1 ?l#~SVIN:»Ol'l~.on::l:J.Wl l'II 
-.,.,,jl'i'r),')M),.R.UO : ~MIIIP'IOW"Wd~ 'rlOI 

U:Jt/N4 WJ :Nini ICll.aua 

N\/7d lliS 6, e 

.U OS ~ •1z V3W 101 
u os zarc ·Y3lh' 0010 

8"1 !lNl.lS3.l 03SOdO!ld 

A\'M"V'f'll 03lWno$HO::> 'r"·p-- --- --_ 'i'. ___ - -,,..----~--f . ___...,.~ ,, , . , ,u e&« < , :1c ,,,, 
I ✓ t;/i'° 

t O 
1,1r- ,-· nn i;i 

~=: s 
'· 



II 

II ~-------· II ::1 - . _,: :: 
IL _ PR~ POSED ~REE~ PA~K TOWER _ 

11 

::1 lgY y ~ JI ==-
111 
"== ·== ========== 

0 @ GRAPHIC SITE PlAN 
Al - ... 

•J 3 
t~ ! 

~ !e 
•~ / is 
c., Ii 5 
- Ii . ;:;,., u; 

"UT-a.-l •U ,_, 
Hl()![C-

~ -

Cl: 
w 
~ .:~ o o o:;; 
I- ~., ,._ 
:.:: >!::;; 
Cl: a. • 
<( ~ ~ 
a.. ct a. 
z .2 "§ 
ttl ~5 
Cl: 
(!) 

'WINO Till[ 

GRAPHIC 
SITE PIAN 

~ 
~ 

= 
Al.O 



GREEN PARK TOWER 
John A. Papalas Dr. 

Lincoln Partc. Ml 48146 



GREEN PARK TOWER 
John A. Papalas Dr. 

Lincoln Park, Ml 48146 



~ ii 

0 

GREEN PARK TOWER 
John A. Papa/as Or. 

Lincoln Park. Ml 48146 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 1 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

3476 Fort – Massage Facility 

Site Plan Review 
 

Applicant Janeise N. Daniels 

Project Massage Facility 

Address 3476 Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146 

Date June 11, 2020 

Request Site Plan Review 

Recommendation  

 
GENERAL 
All elements of the site plan shall be designed to take into account the site's topography, the size and type of plot, the character of 
adjoining property, and the traffic operations of adjacent streets. The site shall be developed so as not to impede the normal and 
orderly development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in this Zoning Code. The site plan shall conform 
with all requirements of this Zoning Code, including those of the applicable zoning district(s). 

Project and Site Description 

The applicant proposes to open a 
Massage Facility. The space was 
previously used to retail tattoo 
supplies. 

Site conditions 
The 0.1-acre parcel is locted on 
Fort Street just north of Liberty 
Avenue. The building takes up the 
majority of the midblock site, 
leaving just enough room for 
three parking spaces behind it. It is 
served by a rear alley, and there is 
a parking lot in the residential 
zone immediately across the alley 
from the proposed business. On-
street parking is available in front 
of the building.  

Figure 1: Aerial View 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 2 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Master Plan 

Future Land Use Classification 
The Future Land Use classification for this parcel is General Commercial.  
 

Intent; Desirable Uses and Elements 
General commercial properties are intended to serve the whole community and are located along major 
thoroughfares. 

 
Land Use and Zoning 

Zoning 
 

The parcel is zoned 
Neighborhood Business District. 
Personal services are a principally 
permitted use in this district. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed and Existing Uses 
Site Commercial; Neighborhood Business District (NBD) 
North Commercial; Neighborhood Business District (NBD) 
East ROW then Neighborhood Business District (NBD) 
South Commercial; Neighborhood Business District (NBD) 
West Public Alley then Single Family District (SFD) 
 

Figure 2: Zoning Map 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 3 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Site Plan Documents 

The following site plan drawings have been used to perform this review and are part of the public record.  

Page Sheet Title Original Date Last Revision 

A-101 - - - 

1 Floor Plan, Front Building Elevation, Project Information 10/31/2019 - 

2 Reflectove Ceiling Plan, Barrier Fixture Mounting Details, Barrier 
Free Signage 

10/31/2019 - 

e1 Electrical Plan 10/31/2019 - 

m1 Mechanical Plan 10/31/2019 - 

- Floor Plan - - 
 

Dimensional Standards 

The dimensional requirements of the Neighbrhood Business District (NBD) are described in the chart below. 
(§1294.32, except where noted.) 

 Required Provided Compliance 

Lot Width Min. 40 27’ 3” NOT MET 

Street Frontage 
(§1294.09) 

Shrubbery and low retaining walls 2 ½’ 
< height < 8’  

Not Applicable N/A 

Lot Area Min. 4,000 sq ft 2,710 sq ft NOT MET 

Lot Coverage Max. 50% 62% MET 

Height 2-Story Building; 25 ft One-Story; 15’ 5” MET 

Setback – Front  0 0 MET 

Setback – Sides  0 0 MET 

Setback – Rear  0 30’  MET 
 
The size of theparcel and the existing building cannot meet the letter of the dimentional requirements for 
Lot Width and Lot Area. The existing building width and proportion relate to existing adjoning 
properties/buildings within the same block. 
 

Items to be addressed 

None 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 4 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

 

BUILDING DESIGN 
The building design shall relate to the surrounding environment in regard to texture, scale, mass, proportion, and color. High 
standards of construction and quality materials will be incorporated into the new development. In addition to following design 
guidelines adopted in specific district or sub-area plans, the building design shall meet the requirements of Section 1296.04, 
Standards for Architecture and Building Materials. 

Required Compliance 
• Building mass, height, bulk and width-to-height ratio within 50-150% of buildings 

within 500’ 
MET 

• Architectural variety 
• Similar materials and entrances to buildings within 500’  

MET 

• Building materials: primarily natural products conveying permanence (brick, decorative 
masonry block, stone, or beveled wood siding) = 75% of each façade (industrial 
districts, 50% if facing ROW) 

• 25% may be glass, exterior insulation finish systems (EIFS), vinyl, aluminum, or steel 
siding; or similar synthetic or highly-reflective materials (industrial districts not facing 
public streets or freeways, these and pre-cast concrete or plain masonry block)  

• Natural colors (bright for decorative features only) 

MET 

• Façade: <100’ uninterrupted   
• If >100’ = recesses, off-sets, angular forms, arches, colonnades, columns, pilasters, 

detailed trim, brick bands, contrasting courses of material, cornices or porches 
• All sides similar 

MET 

• Windows: vertical, recessed, visually-obvious sills 
• Spaces between windows = columns, mullions, or material found elsewhere on the 

façade 
• Front facades > 25% windows 
• Size, shape, orientation, spacing to match buildings within 500’ 

MET 

• Main entrances: doors larger 
• Framing devices (overhangs, recesses, peaked roof forms, porches, arches, canopies, 

parapets, awnings, display windows, accent colors, tile work, moldings, pedestrian-
scale lighting, distinctive door pulls) 

MET 

• Pitched / shingled roof forms suggested; overhanging eaves with slope of 0.5 to 1 
• Rooflines >100’ = roof forms, parapets, cornice lines  
• Roof-top mechanical equipment screened by roof form. 

MET 

 
 

1276.06, Required Conditions (NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT) Compliance 
• All businesses, services or processing shall be conducted wholly within a 

completely enclosed building. 
MET 

• All lighting in connection with permitted business uses shall be so arranged as to 
reflect away from adjoining residence buildings or residentially zoned property, 
and shall be no greater than ten (10) foot candles at any point upon the lot, and 
no greater than one (1) foot candle along any lot line. 

See Lighting, 
below 

• All business or service establishment shall be for the purpose of dealing directly 
with consumers. All goods produced or processed on the premises shall be sold at 
retail on the premises where produced and/or processed. 

MET 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 5 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

1276.06, Required Conditions (NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT) Compliance 
• Where a new or expanded land use occurs in a Neighborhood Business District 

(NBD), which new or expanded land use abuts directly upon a residentially zoned 
district, protective screening shall be provided in accordance with Section 
1294.28, Screening. 
 

N/A 

 
 
Items to be addressed 

None 
 

PRESERVATION OF SIGNIFICANT NATURAL FEATURES 
Judicious effort shall be used to preserve the integrity of the land, existing topography, and natural, historical, and architectural 
features as deemed in this Zoning Code, in particular flood hazard areas and wetlands designated/regulated by the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality, and, to a lesser extent, flood hazard areas and wetlands which are not regulated by the 
Department. 

There are no significant natural features to preserve. 

Items to be addressed  

None 
 

SIDEWALKS, PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CIRCULATION 
The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be connected to existing or planned 
streets and sidewalks/ pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is 
separated from the vehicular circulation system. In order to ensure public safety, special pedestrian measures, such as crosswalks, 
crossing signals and other such facilities may be required in the vicinity of primary and secondary schools, playgrounds, local 
shopping areas, fast food/ service restaurants and other uses which generate a considerable amount of pedestrian or bicycle traffic. 

The site is served by a 20 ft concrete sidewalk along Fort Street which 
provides pedestrian circulation seperated from the vehicular 
circulation. There are no bicycle lanes on the ROW or bicycle parking 
facilites proposed. Engineering comments note a patch in front of the 
door and attribute it to a water service repair; the review states that 
Lincoln Park DPS has scheduled a repair this year. 

 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall ensure that concrete sidewalks are brought up to 
City standards. 

 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 6 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

PARKING 
The number and dimensions of off-street parking [spaces] shall be sufficient to meet the minimum required by this Zoning Code. 
However, where warranted by overlapping or shared parking arrangements, the Planning Commission may reduce the required 
number of parking spaces, as provided in this Zoning Code. 

The Lincoln Park Code of Ordinance §1290.02 Number of Spaces requirements does not clearly indicate “Massage 
Facilities” use under the Business and Commercial category. The Massage Facilites are recognized as principal 
permited uses within the Neighborhood Business District (NBD) under §1276.02 (f) of Personal Services uses; which 
can fit under subsection (5) health Salons, Spas, Gymnasium or subsection (8) uses similar to the uses set forth in this 
subsection. 

Use Required Proposed Compliance 

Service 
establishments, 
except as 
otherwise 
specified 
herein 

Two (2) for every one-thousand (1,000) square feet of 
gross leaseable floor area. 

1,670 sf /1000 sf = 2 Parking Spaces 

3 Parking 
Spaces 

MET 

 

Parking 
Area 

Type B 
§1290.05 

Required Proposed Compliance 
Adequate means of ingress and egress shall be 
provided and shown 

The public Alley serves as 
egress and ingress to the 
parking space 

MET 

Parking facilities, access drives, and maneuvering 
aisles shall be hard surfaced with concrete or 
plant-mixed bituminous material, maintained in a 
usable dustproof condition and graded and 
drained appropriately 

“Existing surface material 
in the parking area is 
slag” 

NOT MET 

Concrete curbs and gutters Not provided NOT MET 
When adjoining residential property and/or a 
residential street or alley: 6’ solid masonry wall, 
ornamental on both sides, with bumper guards 

No solid masonary wall is 
proposed. The property 
adjons SFRD to the west 
(rear) that is vacant and 
accupied by parking 
spaces. The adjoning 
residential buildings are 
screened with existing 
wooden fence. 

See 
Landscaping, 
below 

All street boundaries of such parking facilities, 
where residential property is located on the 
opposite side of the street, shall be treated the 
same as set forth in Section 1290.04, Off-Street 
Parking A Areas; Residential Districts Adjoining 
Business or Industrial Districts. 

The parking space abuts a 
public alley and SFRD 
occupied  by parking 
spaces.  

N/A 

Entrance only from the adjoining principal use or 
adjoining alley; no use of street for backing or 
maneuvering 

The public alley serves for 
backing and maneuvering 

MET 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 7 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Parking 
 

  
 

Required Proposed Compliance 
In all cases where such parking facilities abut 
public sidewalks, a wall or curb at least six (6) 
inches high, or steel posts twenty-four (24) to 
thirty (30) inches high and not more than five (5) 
feet apart, set three (3) feet in concrete, shall be 
placed thereon so that a motor vehicle cannot be 
driven or parked with any part thereof extending 
within two (2) feet of a public sidewalk. 

The Parking space abuts 
public alley 

N/A 

 

The site plan indicates that the 
existing parking lot is surfaced 
with slag, which does not meet 
code, and engineering 
comments note that the lot will 
need to be repaved due to its 
condition.  

 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall provide curb 
and gutters detailed to scale 
in accordance with LP Code 
of Ordinance. 

� Site plan shall be revised to 
indicate compliant parking 
lot surface. 
 

 

BARRIER-FREE ACCESS 
The site has been designed to provide barrier-free parking and pedestrian circulation. 

Required 
Spaces 

Required Barrier-
Free Spaces 

Proposed Barrier-
Free Spaces Compliance 

1-25 1 Not Provided NOT MET 

 
Standard barrier-free access requires that one of the parking spaces shall be van-accessible. At the 
applicant’s request, a legal opinion may be requested from the City’s attorneys as to whether the omission 
of this space could be permitted due to the limited availability of parking. If no such legal opinion is 
requested, then the required accessible space shall be provided. 
 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 8 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall provide one signed and marked barrier-free space at a convenient location of the 
parking lot in accordance with §1290.02 (b), or shall request a review from the City of Lincoln Park 
legal counsel regarding an exception due to existing conditions and limited space. 

 

LOADING 
All loading and unloading areas and outside storage areas, including refuse storage stations, shall be screened in accordance with 
this Zoning Code. 

Gross Floor 
Area 

Loading Spaces – 
Required 

Loading Spaces – 
Provided Compliance 

0 to 2,000 None None MET 

 
Items to be addressed  

None 
 

ACCESS, DRIVEWAYS, AND VEHICULAR CIRCULATION 
Safe, convenient, uncongested, and well-defined vehicular and pedestrian circulation within and to the site shall be provided. 
Drives, streets, parking and other elements shall be designed to discourage through traffic, while promoting safe and efficient 
traffic operations within the site and at its access points. All driveways shall meet the design and construction standards of the 
City. Access to the site shall be designed to minimize conflicts with traffic on adjacent streets, particularly left turns into and from 
the site. For uses having frontage and/or access on a major traffic route, as defined in the City of Lincoln Park Comprehensive 
Development Plan, the number, design, and location of access driveways and other provisions for vehicular circulation shall comply 
with the provisions of Section 1290.10, Access Management Standards. 

The standards of this section shall be applied to the following major traffic routes (arterials) identified in the 
City of Lincoln Park Comprehensive Development Plan: Southfield Road, Fort Street, Dix Avenue, and Outer 
Drive. 

There is no vehicular access to this site from any of these routes, so the standards of this section do not 
apply. 

 
Items to be addressed 

None 
 

EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS 
All buildings or groups of buildings shall be arranged so as to permit necessary emergency vehicle access as required by the Fire 
Department and Police Department. 

Emergeny vehicle access will be via Fort St. or the alley west of the site. The Lincoln Park Police Department 
has reviewed this plan and indicate no oustanding issues. 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 9 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Items to be addressed 

None 
 

STREETS 
All streets shall be developed in accordance with the City of Lincoln Park Subdivision Control Ordinance and construction 
standards, unless developed as a private road in accordance with the requirements of the City. 

No new streets are proposed. 

 

Items to be addressed 

None 
 

LANDSCAPING, SCREENING, AND OPEN SPACE 
The landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by removing only those areas of vegetation or making 
those alterations to the topography which are reasonably necessary to develop the site in accordance with the requirements of this 
Zoning Code. Landscaping shall be preserved and/or provided to ensure that proposed uses will be adequately buffered from one 
another and from surrounding public and private property. Landscaping, landscape buffers, greenbelts, fencing, walls and other 
protective barriers shall be provided and designed in accordance with the provisions of Section 1296.03, Landscaping Standards. 
Recreation and open space areas shall be provided in all multiple-family residential and educational developments. 

 Required Proposed Compliance 

St
re

et
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 Greenbelt, 10’ width minimum with 

groundcover 
Not provided; sidewalk extends 
between building and ROW 

N/A 

1 tree and 4 shrubs per 40’ of street frontage  
27 total = 1 trees and 4 shrubs 
Where headlights from parked vehicles will 
shine into the ROW, may require a totally 
obscuring hedge 

In
te

rio
r L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 10% of total lot area landscaped, including 

groundcover  
2710 sf *0.1 = 271 sf landscaping 

Not provided; lot is entirely 
covered by building, sidewalk, 
and parking 

N/A 

Interior landscaping to be grouped near 
entrances, foundations, walkways, service areas 
1 tree per 400 sf of required landscaping and 1 
shrub per 250 sf of required landscaping  
271 sf = 1 trees and 2 shrubs 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Lo
t 

1 deciduous or ornamental tree per 10 parking 
spaces  
<10 

Not provided; The parking lot 
27*30 ft accommodates 3 
existing parking spaces, each 
9*19 ft, leaving 11 ft for proper 
backing and maneuvering 

N/A 

100 sf of planting area per tree 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 10 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

 Required Proposed Compliance 

Sc
re

en
in

g 

Waste receptacle: Decorative masonry wall of at 
least 6’ with solid or impervious gate 

Waste receptacle is not 
proposed. Appliant proposes 
the use of weekly trash pickup. 
Site Plan indicates an ”area 
where trash cans will be placed 
on trash day 

N/A 

Abutting residential: greenbelt, 15’ with 5’ 
evergreens (PC may waive); solid 6’ masonry 
wall ornamental on both sides 

Not provided; the placement 
and size of the building provide 
no adequate space to deliver 
the provision of the greenbelt 
requirements in accordance 
with §1296.03 landscaping 
standrads and the 6 ft solid 
masonary wall requirments in 
accordnace with §1294.28 
screening. 

N/A 

 

§1294.28   
(a)  Where a Business or Industrial District abuts directly upon a Residential District, a landscaped greenbelt 

meeting the requirements of Section 1296.03, Landscaping Standards, shall be provided and maintained 
along its entire length by the users of the business or industrially zoned property.googl 
If, in the opinion of the Planning Commission, the greenbelt would serve no good purpose, the Commission 
may waive such requirement and provide only the wall between the residential use and the business or 
industrial use. 

(b)  Where required walls are provided on the business side of public alleys, wall requirements may be waived to 
provide necessary entrance to or exit from required off-street parking and loading areas, provided the parking 
area is in mid-block with no possibility for street ingress or egress, and provided, further, that such opening, 
if approved by the Police Department, the Traffic Division, and the Commission, shall be stepped down to a 
three (3)-foot level for a minimum of ten (10) feet on each side of the opening. 

 
§1296.03 (k) Waiver or Modification of Standards for Special Situations. The Planning Commission may 
determine whether or not existing landscaping or screening intended to be preserved, or a different landscape 
design, would provide all or part of the required landscaping and screening. In making such a determination to 
waive or reduce the landscaping and screening requirements of this section, the following may be considered: 
      (1)   The extent that existing natural vegetation provides desired screening. 
      (2)   Whether there is a steep change in topography which would limit the benefits of required landscaping. 
      (3)   The presence of existing wetlands and watercourses. 
      (4)   Existing and proposed building placement. 
      (5)   Whether the abutting or adjacent land is developed or planned by the City for a use other than residential 

uses. 
      (6)   Building heights and views. 
      (7)   Whether the adjacent Residential District is over two-hundred (200) feet away from the subject site. 
      (8)   Whether similar conditions to the above exist such that no good purpose would be served by providing 

the landscaping or screening required. 
 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 11 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall request waiver for the provision of the landscape, greenbelt, and 6’ solid masonry wall 
in accordance with sections 1294.28 and 1296.03 (k) of Lincoln Park Zoning Code.  

 

SOIL EROSION CONTROL 
The site shall have adequate lateral support so as to ensure that there will be no erosion of soil or other material. The final 
determination as to adequacy of, or need for, lateral support shall be made by the Building Superintendent or City Engineer. 

All erosion and sedementation measures are under the jurisdiction of Wayne County. 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall work with the building superintendent, City Engineer, and Lincoln Park Department of 
Public Services to review soil erosion practices as needed.  

 

UTILITIES 
Public water and sewer facilities shall be available or shall be provided for by the developer as part of the site development, where 
such systems are available. 

The site is served by public water and sewer. No new water line or sanitary sewer systems are proposed for 
the site. 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall work with the City Engineer to verify the existing water service and sanitary service type, 
size, and determine the lead capacity for the proposed building use. 

 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
Appropriate measures shall be taken to ensure that removal of surface waters will not adversely affect neighboring properties or 
the public storm drainage system. Provisions shall be made to accommodate stormwater which complements the natural drainage 
patterns and wetlands, prevent erosion and the formation of dust. Sharing of stormwater facilities with adjacent properties shall be 
encouraged. The use of detention/ retention ponds may be required. Surface water on all paved areas shall be collected at intervals 
so that it will not obstruct the flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic or create standing water. 

Stormwater management is under the jurisdiction of Wayne County. No new stormwater management 
system is proposed to the site. 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant shall work with the City Engineer to review stormwater management system to determine 
the appropriate permitting process. 

 

 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 12 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

LIGHTING 
Exterior lighting shall be arranged so that it is deflected away from adjacent properties and so that it does not impede the vision of 
traffic along adjacent streets. Flashing or intermittent lights shall not be permitted. 

1276.06, Required Conditions (NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT) Compliance 
• All lighting in connection with permitted business uses shall be so arranged as to 

reflect away from adjoining residence buildings or residentially zoned property, and 
shall be no greater than ten (10) foot candles at any point upon the lot, and no 
greater than one (1) foot candle along any lot line. 

INQUIRY 

 

The site is served by an existing light pole located at the sidewalk of Fort Street. The Electrical Plan Sheet e1 
indicates two (B) Twin Head Exterior light Fixtures; Lithonia Lighting ELA LED T. Each light fixture is 
mounted above the entry doors of the east and west sides of the building, and is shielded by the mansard 
façade at the front of the building. 

Items to be addressed 

None 
 

NOISE 
The site has been designed, buildings so arranged, and activities/equipment programmed to minimize the emission of noise, 
particularly for sites adjacent to residential districts. 

No adverse noise impacts are anticipated from the development. 

Items to be addressed  

None 
 

MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 
Mechanical equipment, both roof and ground mounted, shall be screened in accordance with the requirements of this Zoning 
Code. 

Existing roof-top A/C condenser is not visible from Fort Street. 

 
Items to be addressed 

None 

 

SIGNS 
The standards of the City's Sign Code are met. 

Signs shall be permitted by the Building Depatment in accordance with the Lincoln Park Sign Ordinance. 
Signinformation presented during site Plan Review is for illustrative purposes only. 

Items to be addressed 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 13 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

� Applicant shall work with the Building Department to ensure signs comply with the Lincoln Park Sign 
Ordinance. 

 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS OR WASTE 
For businesses utilizing, storing or handling hazardous material such as automobile service and automobile repair stations, dry 
cleaning plants, metal plating industries, and other industrial uses, documentation of compliance with state and federal 
requirements shall be provided. 

There is no indication of hazardous substances and polluting materials to be used or stored on-site at the 
facility. 

Items to be addressed  

None 
 

SITE DESIGN STANDARDS FOR USES PERMITTED AFTER SPECIAL APPROVAL 
All applicable standards for uses permitted after special approval are met. 

The use of Massage Facility in the NBD is a principal permitted use in compliance with §1276.02 (f) (5). 

Items to be addressed 

None 
 

OTHER AGENCY REVIEWS 
The applicant has provided documentation of compliance with other appropriate agency review standards, including, but not 
limited to, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Michigan Department 
of Transportation, Wayne County Drain Commission, Wayne County Health Department, and other federal and state agencies, as 
applicable. 

 

Items to be addressed 

� Applicant to secure all appropriate agency reviews as needed. 
 

VARIANCES 
No variances are anticipated in conjunction with this development. 

Items to be addressed 

None 
 

 



 

3476 Fort - Site Plan Review - 14 of 14 

p l a n n i n g  r e v i e w 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Findings 

The proposal is substantially in compliance with §1296.01, Site Plan Review. 

Conditions and Waivers 

Waivers 
� Waiver requested for the provision of the landscape, greenbelt, and 6’ solid masonry wall in 

accordance with sections 1294.28 and 1296.03 (k) of Lincoln Park Zoning Code.  
 

Conditions to be addressed before final approval 
� Applicant shall provide curb and gutters detailed to scale in accordance with LP Code of Ordinance. 
� Site plan shall be revised to indicate compliant parking lot surface. 
� Applicant shall provide one signed and marked barrier-free space at a convenient location of the 

parking lot in accordance with §1290.02 (b), or shall request a review from the City of Lincoln Park 
legal counsel regarding an exception due to existing conditions and limited space. 

 

Conditions of approval 
� Applicant shall ensure that concrete sidewalks are brought up to City standards. 
� Applicant shall work with the building superintendent, City Engineer, and Lincoln Park Department of 

Public Services to review soil erosion practices as needed.  
� Applicant shall work with the City Engineer to verify the existing water service and sanitary service type, 

size, and determine the lead capacity for the proposed building use. 
� Applicant shall work with the City Engineer to review stormwater management system to determine 

the appropriate permitting process. 
� Applicant shall work with the Building Department to ensure signs comply with the Lincoln Park Sign 

Ordinance. 
� Applicant to secure all appropriate agency reviews as needed. 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that, based on the above information which demonstrates conformance with the 
requirements of Section 1296.01 of the City of Lincoln Park Zoning Ordinance, the request by Janeise 
Daniels for a Site Plan Approval for a Massage Facility at 3476 Fort St., dated October 31 2019 and March 
31 2020, be approved with the  waivers herein and conditions as noted above to be resolved 
administratively. 

 



 

 

 
 

13500 Reeck Road Southgate, MI 48195   |   734.759.1600   |   Fax 734.282.6566   |   www.hengineers.com 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
June 8, 2020  
 
Ms. Leah DuMouchel, AICP 
Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
535 West William St. Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI, 48103-4978 
 
Re:   Relaxation Therapy Spa 

3476 Fort St. 
 City of Lincoln Park, MI 

Hennessey Project 72130 
   
 

Dear Ms. DuMouchel: 
 
 
 
Hennessey Engineers, Inc. completed our second review of the Preliminary Plan based on the plan I 
received via email January 20, 2020 from you. 
 
The proposed development is a conversion of an existing commercial salon to a restaurant.  The existing 
building is approximately 1700, square feet, single story commercial building.  There is limited parking in 
the rear of the property. 
 
Listed below are some comments:  
 
GENERAL 

1. Based on the site plan submitted, all existing utilities and leads are being reused.  It is important 
that the developer realize these existing utilities are very old and may have reached their life 
expectancy.  It is our strong recommendation for the developer to at least videotape the existing 
sewer lead to determine its condition prior to performing any new renovation on or around the 
building.  If the service lead needs to be replaced the installation of the new service will need to 
be inspected by our office.  The developer should verify with the City the existing sanitary service 
type and size.  If it is undersized for the proposed building use it must be placed.  The developer’s 
engineer or architect shall determine the sanitary service lead capacity. 

2. The developer should verify with the City the existing water service type and size.  If it is a lead 
service or if the service is undersized for the proposed building use, it should be placed. The 
developer’s engineer or architect shall determine the water service lead capacity. 

3. There is a temporary patch in the concrete sidewalk at the entrance to the building on Fort 
Street.  It appears that there was a water service repair.  The Lincoln Park DPS is aware of this 
patch and has it scheduled to be repaired this year.   



Relaxation Therapy Spa        Page 2 
3476 Fort Street        June 8, 2020 
City of Lincoln Park, MI 
Hennessey Project 72130 
 

 

 
13500 Reeck Road Southgate, MI 48195   |   734.759.1600   |   Fax 734.282.6566   |   

www.hengineers.com 
 
 

 

4. Overall the parking lot in the rear of the building is in rough condition.  The property owner  
should repave the parking lot and bring it up to the City’s Standards. 

 
From an engineering feasibility our office does not have any issues with the approval of the Preliminary 
Site Plan submittal.  Therefore, from the engineering feasibility review it would be our recommendation 
for the “approval” of the Preliminary Site Plan contingent upon the items listed above being addressed.     
If there will not be any utility we will not need to perform a detailed engineering review.    
 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 

 
James D. Hollandsworth, P.E., P.S. 
Lincoln Park Project Manager 
 
JDH/bd 
 
cc: John Kozuh, DPW Director, City of Lincoln Park 

John J. Hennessey, Hennessey Engineers, Inc. 
B.3 
R:\Municipalities\70000's Lincoln Park\72000's\72130 Relaxation Therapy Spa 3476 Fort St\3476 Fort St 1st PC Review June 8, 2020.docx 



15
'-5

"

9'-
5"

6'-
0"

27'-3"
16'-10"

PROPOSED
SIGNAGE AREA

2'-4"4'-4"1'-5"

16'-0"

4'-
0"

27'-3"

98
'-9

7 8"

PARKING 3 CARS

68
'-9

7 8"
30

'-0
"

FORT STREET

27'-3"

3'-10"

3476 FORT STREET
LINCOLN PARK, MI

EXISTING PLUMBING
SUPPLY STORE

EXISTING SALON

EXISTING ALLEY

9'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0"

19
'-0

"

4/
1/

20
20

 4
:4

6:
56

 P
M

A-
10

1 
- E

XI
ST

IN
G

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN
 - 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
.d

w
g

3/
31

/2
02

0 
3:

57
:1

1 
PM

#

L. CALHOUN

G. HARRISON

                 

  20002.00
A-101

SCALE:
REF:

2

A-101

SOUTH ELEVATION 
1/4"=1'-0"

SCALE:
REF:

1

A-101

LOCATION MAP
1" =20'-0"

A-101

SCALE:
REF:

2

A-101

SITE PLAN
1/4" =1'-0"

EXISTING GAS
METER

AREA WHERE
TRASH CANS WILL
BE PLACED ON
TRASH DAY

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY (TYP.)

ALL LOADING AND
UNLOADING WILL BE
DONE THROUGH THE
REAR ENTRY (TYP.)

NOTE:  ADJACENT PROPERTIES
HAVE A RAIN GUTTER AT THE
REAR AND DOWNSPOUTS,
DRAINING WATER ONTO GRADE.

EXISTING ELECTRIC
METER  WITH AN
OVERHEAD FEED FROM
POWER POLES ALONG
THE ALLEY (TYP.)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:
LOT 374, ASSESSORS FORT SUPERHIGHWAY SUBDIVISION NO. 11, LIBER
63

GENERAL NOTES:

1. PROPERTY IS 0.1 ACRES - NET AND TOTAL ACREAGE ARE THE SAME.

2. PROPERTY IS EXISTING - FRONT AND SIDE SETBACKS, GRADING,
SEDIMENTATION AND DRAINAGE ARE NOT APPLICABLE.

3. TRANSFORMER PAD DOES NOT EXIST - ELECTRICAL POWER IS FROM
AN OVERHEAD FEED.

4. THERE ARE NO EXISTING DRAINS OR OTHER STORM WATER
FEATURES IN THE PARKING AREA. EXISTING SURFACE MATERIAL IN
THE PARKING AREA IS SLAG.

5. HEATING IS PROVIDED FROM AN EXISTING FURNACE LOCATED INSIDE
THE BUILDING.

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY (TYP.)

EXISTING CONCRETE
BLOCK MASONRY (TYP.)

EXISTING PLASTIC SHAKE
SHINGLES ON MANSARD
FACADE AT FRONT ONLY (TYP.)

EXISTING ROOFTOP A/C
CONDENSER

NEW SIGNAGE HEIGHT ABOVE
GRADE TO COMPLY WITH THE
CITY OF LINCOLN PARK
SIGNAGE ORDINANCE

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY (TYP.) EXISTING GAS

METER

SHEET NO.

FILE NO.

APPROVED

CHECKED

DRAWN BY

SCALE:

SHEET TITLE

DATEISSUED FOR

607 Shelby Street
Suite 704

3476 FORT STREET
LINCOLN PARK MI 48146

RELAXATION
MASSAGE THERAPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTRATION SEAL



Mech. Rm.

Break Rm.

ADA CODE
MICHIGAN CODE

OWNER

PROJECT NO. 2019-123
A BARRIER FREE SYMBOL WILL BE MOUNTED ADJACENT TO ALL
ACCESSIBLE BUILDING ENTRANCES.
THE INTERIOR EMERGENCY EXIT SIGNAGE SHALL COMPLY WITH
SECTION 1190.0. ALL SIGNAGE SHALL MEET CABO/ANSI
REQUIREMENTS.
FURNISH TACTILE SIGNAGE MOUNTED ADJACENT TO (LATCH SIDE)
ROOM DOORS AND PUBLIC SPACES.
THE DOOR TO AN ACCESSIBLE ROOM SHALL HAVE A 18"X60"
MINIMUM MANEUVERING SPACE ON THE LATCH SIDE OF THE
DOOR.
THE LATCH SIDE CLEARANCE OF 12" (PUSH SIDE) AND 18"
(PULL SIDE) SHALL BE MET IN ALL ACCESSIBLE ROOMS.

ALL PLANS ARE TO COMPLY WITH MBC 2016

NOTE:
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AT PROJECT SITE.
AN APPROVED SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS
SHALL BE KEPT AT THE SITE OF THE WORK AND
SHALL BE AVAILABLE FOR REFERENCE BY BUILDING
OFFICIAL OR THE BUILDING OFFICIALS DESIGNATED
REPRESENTATIVE AT ALL TIMES DURING WORKING
HOURS WHILE SUCH WORK IS IN PROGRESS.

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: III B
OCCUPANCY LOAD:  10 PEOPLE

PROPOSED AREA 1,670 sq ft & ONE STORY

ALLOWABLE AREA 12,000 sq ft & TWO STORY

OKAY

REPRODUCTION OF PRINTS IS PROHIBITED.

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 1 2 3 4 8 12 feet

MICH MECHANICAL CODE 2015
MICH PLUMBING CODE 2015
MICH ELECTRICAL CODE 2015
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 2012

USE GROUP:   (B) BUSINESS

Janitor Rm.

Bath Rm.

No.4
Storage Rm.

Waiting Area

Receptionist Area

Office

Massage Rm.

No.3
Massage Rm.

No.1
Massage Rm.

No.2
Massage Rm.

Corridor

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 1 2 3 4 8 12 feet



Barrier Free Signage

Scale: NTS

0

Mech. Rm.

Break Rm.

REPRODUCTION OF PRINTS IS PROHIBITED.

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 1 2 3 4 8 12 feet

Janitor Rm.

Bath Rm.

No.4
Storage Rm.

Waiting Area

Receptionist Area

Office

Massage Rm.

No.3
Massage Rm.

No.1
Massage Rm.

No.2
Massage Rm.

Corridor

Barrier Fixture Mounting Details

Scale: NTS

0

Barrier Fixture Mounting Details



” ” ” 

Mech. Rm.

Break Rm.

REPRODUCTION OF PRINTS IS PROHIBITED.

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 1 2 3 4 8 12 feet

Janitor Rm.

Bath Rm.

No.4
Storage Rm.

Waiting Area

Receptionist Area

Office

Massage Rm.

No.3
Massage Rm.

No.1
Massage Rm.

No.2
Massage Rm.

Corridor



Mech. Rm.

Break Rm.

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0 1 2 3 4 8 12 feet

Janitor Rm.

Bath Rm.

No.4
Storage Rm.

Waiting Area

Receptionist Area

Office

Massage Rm.

No.3
Massage Rm.

No.1
Massage Rm.

No.2
Massage Rm.

Corridor

REPRODUCTION OF PRINTS IS PROHIBITED.









































1296.01 SITE PLAN REVIEW.  
 

(a) Purpose and Intent. 
The purpose of site plan review is to promote the stability of land values and investments 
and the general welfare by ensuring the orderly development and redevelopment of the 
City in compliance with this Zoning Code, and consistent with the character of the City and 
with the goals and design guidelines in the Master Plan. 

(b) Applicability and Authority.  
(1) Site Plan Required. A site plan as described in section 1296.01(d) is required prior to any 

of the following activities: 
A. The erection of any building or structure in any zoning district for any principal 

permitted use in the City. 
B. Any land use requiring special approval, conditional rezoning, or planned unit 

development, other than one single-family residence and accessory buildings and 
structures thereto, subject to the procedures set forth in this section unless 
otherwise provided in paragraph (b)(2) hereof. 

C. Establishment of any regulated use unless expressly exempted in this Article. 
D. Development of non-residential uses in a residential zoning district. 
E. Any development that would, if approved, provide for the establishment of more 

than one (1) principal use on a parcel, such as, a single-family site condominium or 
similar project where a single parcel is developed to include two (2) or more sites for 
detached single family dwellings, excluding accessory dwelling units. 

F. The development or construction of any accessory uses or structures, except for 
uses or structures that are accessory to a residential use. 

G. Any use or construction for which submission of a site plan is required by any 
provision of these regulations. 

(2) Site Plan Not Required. Site plan approval is not required for the following activities; 
instead, a sketch plan as described in section 1296.01(d) may be required.  
A. A change in the ownership of land or a structure. 
B. Site or building improvements which increase or maintain conformity with the 

Zoning Code. 
C. A change in the use of a structure to a use allowed by right in the zoning district in 

which it is located, and which is deemed similar to the previous use by the Building 
Superintendent or designee, provided that no modification to the site is proposed or 
required by the standards of this Ordinance and that the site maintains full and 
continuing compliance with this regulations. 

D. Constructing, moving, relocating, or structurally altering a principal residential 
structure, including any customarily incidental accessory structures and also 
including excavating, filling, or otherwise removing soil where such activity is 
normally and customarily incidental. 

E. Permitted home occupations. 
(3) Approval Authority.  

A. Administrative. The Building Official or designee shall have the authority to approve 
all sketch plans. The Building Official or designee shall also have the authority to 
approve site plans meeting the criteria in this section. Nothing in this section shall 
be construed to prevent the consideration of a proposal by the Planning 
Commission.  
1. The use is permitted by right in the established zoning district; 



2. The proposal conforms to all requirements and specifications of this ordinance 
and does not require waivers or other consideration reserved to the Planning 
Commission or other authority; and 

3. The proposal will result in an increase in floor area of less than 1,000 square 
feet or 5% of the existing floor area, whichever is less. 

B. Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall have the authority to 
approval all proposals for development permitted by right and by Special Land Use 
approval. For all proposals for Conditional Rezoning and Planned Unit 
Development, the Planning Commission shall make a recommendation as to 
approval to City Council.  

C. City Council. City Council shall have the authority to approve Planned Unit 
Developments in accordance with Chapter 1288 and to Conditional Rezonings in 
accordance with Chapter 1289. 

(4) Approval Table. The following table summarizes types of uses and the type of review 
each requires. 
Type of Use Type of 

Submittal 
Approval Authority 

1. Single-Family Detached Dwellings Sketch Plan  Administrative 
2. Single-Family Attached Dwellings, Two-
Family Dwellings 

Site Plan Administrative 

3. Multiple-Family Dwelling Units Site Plan Administrative or 
Planning Commission, 
per 1296.01(3)(a) 

4. Principal Non-Residential Uses in New 
Structures 

Site Plan Planning Commission 

5. Change of Use – permitted uses within 
district 

Site Plan Administrative or 
Planning Commission, 
per 1296.01(3)(a) 

6. Multiple Principal Uses Site Plan Planning Commission 
7. Non-Residential Uses in Residential Districts Site Plan  Planning Commission 
8. Expansion of an existing use, other than 
single- and two-family dwellings 

Site Plan  Administrative or 
Planning Commission, 
per 1296.01(3)(a) 

9. Accessory Structures for Residential 
Buildings 

Sketch Plan  Administrative 

10. Accessory Structures for Non-Residential 
Buildings 

Site Plan  Planning Commission 

11 Parking Lots – repairing, resurfacing, 
restriping, curbing 

Sketch Plan  Administrative 

12. Parking Lots – reconstructing  Site Plan  Planning Commission 
13. Site and Building Improvements Sketch Plan  Administrative 
14. Special Land Uses  Conceptual Plan, 

Site Plan  
Planning Commission 

15. Planned Unit Developments Conceptual Plan, 
Site Plan, PUD 
Agreement  

Planning Commission, 
City Council 

16. Conditional Rezoning Site Plan, CR 
Agreement 

Planning Commission, 
City Council 

 
(c) Standards for Site Plan Approval.  

Elizabeth Gunden
Other districts that should be included?



The following criteria shall be used as a basis upon which site plans will be reviewed and 
approved.  
(1) Adequacy of information. The site plan shall include all required information in 

sufficiently complete and understandable form to provide an accurate description of the 
proposed uses and structures. 

(2) Site design characteristics. All elements of the site design shall be harmoniously and 
efficiently organized in relation to topography, the size and type of parcel, the character 
of adjoining property, and the type and size of buildings. The site shall be developed so 
as not to impede the normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding 
property for uses permitted by this section. 

(3) Appearance. Landscaping, earth berms, fencing, signs, walls, and other site features 
shall be designed and located on the site so that the proposed development is 
aesthetically pleasing and harmonious with nearby existing or future developments. 

(4) Compliance with district requirements. The site plan shall comply with the district 
requirements for minimum floor space, height of building, lot size, open space, density 
and all other requirements set forth in the Schedule of Regulations (Section 1294.32), 
except as provided elsewhere in this section. 
A. Site condominiums.  

1. In the case of site condominiums, these regulations shall be applied by requiring 
the site condominium unit and a surrounding limited common element to be 
equal in size to the minimum lot size and lot width requirements for the district 
in which the project is located. The site condominium unit shall be equivalent to 
the area of the lot where a principal building can be constructed and there shall 
be a limited common element associated with each site condominium unit 
which shall be at lease equivalent to the minimum yard area requirements. 

2. In addition, site condominium projects shall comply with the applicable design 
standards which have been developed for similar types of development in the 
City, as described in the City Subdivision Ordinance, the City Engineering Design 
Specifications, and other applicable ordinances and regulations, including 
requirements for streets, blocks, lots, utilities, and storm drainage. These 
requirements and specifications are hereby incorporated and are made a part of 
this section by reference. 

B. Detached condominiums. 
1. In the case of detached condominiums, these regulations shall be applied by 

requiring that the detached condominium units comply with the requirements 
governing minimum distance between buildings, attachment of buildings, and 
other applicable requirements for the district in which the project is located. 
Furthermore, proposed detached condominium projects shall not exceed the 
maximum permitted density for the district in which the project is located. 

2. In addition, site condominium projects shall comply with the applicable design 
standards which have been developed for similar types of development in the 
City, as described in the City Subdivision Ordinance, the City Engineering Design 
Specifications, and other applicable ordinances and regulations, including 
requirements for streets, blocks, lots, utilities, and storm drainage. These 
requirements and specifications are hereby incorporated and are made a part of 
this section by reference. 

C. Condominium document review and approval. 

Leah DuMouchel
Some forbid outright. Discussion?



1. The Planning Commission shall review the final condominium documents to 
determine compliance with site plan approval and City and State of Michigan 
condominium development requirements. The Planning Commission shall 
approve or deny the request for final approval of the condominium documents. 
Condominium documents include the Condominium Subdivision Plan (Exhibit B 
drawing), Master Deed and Bylaws. 

2. An application for condominium document review must be submitted to the 
Building Superintendent according to the requirements of paragraph (c)(3) and 
(4) hereof, as applicable, within one year after the date of approval of the 
condominium site plan by the Planning Commission, or such approval shall be 
deemed null and void, unless an extension subject to the requirements of 
paragraph (e)(6)C. hereof is granted. 

3. No installation or construction of any improvements or land balancing or 
grading shall be made or begun until the final condominium documents have 
been approved. No removal of trees and/or other vegetation shall be started at 
this time except for minor clearing required for surveying and staking purposes. 

(5) Privacy. The site design shall provide reasonable visual and sound privacy. Fences, walls, 
barriers, and landscaping shall be used, as appropriate, for the protection and 
enhancement of property and the safety and privacy of occupants and uses. 

(6) Emergency Vehicle Access. All buildings or groups of buildings shall be so arranged as 
to permit convenient and direct emergency vehicle access. 

(7) Circulation. Every structure or dwelling unit shall be provided with adequate means of 
ingress and egress via public streets and walkways. The site plan shall provide a 
pedestrian circulation system that is insulated as completely as is reasonably possible 
from the vehicular circulation system. The arrangement of public and common ways for 
vehicular and pedestrian access shall respect the pattern of existing or planned streets 
and pedestrian ways in the vicinity of the site. The width of streets and drives shall be 
appropriate for the volume of traffic they will carry. 

(8) Barrier-free access. The site shall be designed to provide barrier-free parking and 
pedestrian circulation. 

(9) Parking. The number and dimensions of off-street parking spaces shall be sufficient to 
meet the minimum required by this Zoning Code. Where warranted by overlapping or 
shared parking arrangements, the Planning Commission may reduce the required 
number of parking spaces, as provided in this Zoning Code. 

(10) Stormwater management. Appropriate measures shall be taken to ensure that 
removal of surface waters will not adversely affect neighboring properties or the public 
storm drainage system. Provisions shall be made to accommodate stormwater which 
complement the natural drainage patterns and wetlands, and which prevent erosion 
and the formation of dust. Sharing of stormwater facilities with adjacent properties shall 
be encouraged. The use of detention/ retention ponds may be required. Surface water 
on all paved areas shall be collected at intervals so that it will not obstruct the flow of 
vehicular or pedestrian traffic or create standing water. 

(11) Soil erosion and sedimentation. The proposed development shall include measures 
to prevent  soil erosion and sedimentation during and upon completion of construction, 
in accordance with current State (MDNR) Standards and City Code of Ordinances.   

(12) Building design. The building design shall relate to the surrounding environment 
with regard to texture, scale, mass, proportion, and color. High standards of 
construction and quality materials shall be incorporated into the new development. In 



addition to following design guidelines adopted in specific district or sub-area plans, the 
building design shall meet the requirements of Section 1296.04, Standards for 
Architecture and Building Materials. 

(13) Exterior lighting. Exterior lighting shall be arranged so that it is deflected away from 
adjacent properties and so that it does not impede the vision of traffic along adjacent 
streets. Flashing or intermittent lights shall not be permitted. 

(14) Signs. The development meets all standards in the City’s Sign Code. 
(15) Public Services. Adequate services and utilities, including water, sewage disposal, 

sanitary sewer, and stormwater control services, shall be available or provided, and shall 
be designed with sufficient capacity and durability to properly serve the development. 

(16) Screening. Off-street parking, loading and unloading areas, outside refuse storage 
areas, and other storage areas that are visible from adjacent homes or from public 
roads, shall be screened by walls or landscaping of adequate height. 

(17) Landscaping and open space. The landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, 
insofar as practical, by removing only those areas of vegetation or making those 
alterations to the topography which are reasonably necessary to develop the site in 
accordance with the requirements of this Zoning Code. Landscaping shall be preserved 
and/or provided to ensure that proposed uses will be adequately buffered from one 
another and from surrounding public and private property. Landscaping, landscape 
buffers, greenbelts, fencing, walls, and other protective barriers shall be provided and 
designed in accordance with the provisions of Section 1296.03, Landscaping Standards. 
Recreation and open space areas shall be provided in all multiple-family residential and 
educational developments. 

(18) Danger from Fire and Hazards. The level of vulnerability to injury or loss from 
incidents involving fire and hazardous materials or processes shall not exceed the 
capability of the City to respond to such incidents so as to prevent injury and loss of life 
and property. In making such an evaluation, the City shall consider the location, type, 
characteristic, quantities, and use of materials or processes in relation to the personnel, 
training, equipment and materials, and emergency response plans and capabilities of 
the City. Sites that include significant storage of flammable or hazardous materials or 
waste, fuels, salt, or chemicals shall be designed to prevent spills and discharges of 
polluting materials to the ground, groundwater, and public sewer system. For 
businesses utilizing, storing, or handling hazardous material such as automobile service 
and automobile repair stations, dry cleaning plants, metal plating industries, and other 
industrial uses, documentation of compliance with state and federal requirements shall 
be provided. 

(19) Health and safety concerns. Any use in any zoning district shall comply with 
applicable federal, state, county, and local health and pollution laws and regulations 
with respect to noise; dust, smoke, and other air pollutants; vibration; glare and heat; 
fire and explosive hazards; gases; electromagnetic radiation; radioactive materials; and, 
tox and hazardous materials. 

(20) Phases. All development phases shall be designed in logical sequence to ensure that 
each phase will independently function in a safe, convenient, and efficient manner 
without being dependent upon subsequent improvements in a later phase or on other 
sites. 

(21) Relationship to adjacent sites. All site features, including circulation, parking, 
building orientation, landscaping, lighting, utilities, common facilities, and open space 
shall be review with regard to any common relationship with adjacent properties. 



(22) Other agency reviews. The applicant has provided documentation of compliance 
with other appropriate agency review standards, including, but not limited to, the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources, Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality, Michigan Department of Transportation, Wayne County Drain Commission, 
Wayne County Health Department, and other federal and state agencies, as applicable. 

(d) Application Requirements.  
1. Site Plan Review. An application for site plan review, supplied by the Building 

Department, shall be submitted to the Building Superintendent with the required items 
presented in the table below. Required items shall be demonstrated on the site plan 
drawings, written narrative / submitted documentation, or both as indicated in the 
table. All site plan drawings shall be submitted on sheets twenty-four (24) by thirty-six 
(36) inches and in digital PDF format.  

2. Conceptual Plan Review. Where a Conceptual Plan Review is included as a part of the 
Site Plan Review procedure, either as required by ordinance or requested by the 
applicant, the application for site plan review and required fees shall be submitted to 
the Building Superintendent with the required items presented in the table below. All 
site plan drawings shall be submitted on sheets twenty-four (24) by thirty-six (36) inches 
and in digital PDF format. 

3. Sketch Plan Review. Where a conceptual plan or sketch plan is required by the 
procedures described in 1296.01(e), such required items are also described and shall 
include narrative/documentation. The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the final 
sketch plan, reduced in size to eight and one-half (8 ½) by fourteen (14) inches.  

SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS   
Item Description Sketch 

Plan 
Conceptual Plan Site 

Plan 
Narrative 

Descriptive and Identification Data   
1 Applicant’s name, address, and telephone 

number. 
√ √ √ All 

2 The name of the development. √ √ √ All 
3 The date(s) (submission and revisions), north 

point, and scale.  
√ √ √  

 Scale shall be as follows:  
< 1 acre: One (1) inch = twenty (20) feet 
> 1 acre and < 3 acres: One (1) inch = thirty (30) 
feet 
> 3 acres: One (1) inch = fifty (50) feet 

  √  

4 A small location sketch of sufficient size and 
scale (within a one-quarter mile is suggested) 
showing the location of the area in relation to 
surrounding properties, streets, freeways, 
schools, school sites, and other significant 
features of the City, where appropriate. 

√ √ √  

5 Legal and common description of property √ √ √  
6 The dimensions of all lots and property lines, 

showing the relationship of the site to abutting 
properties. If the site is a part of a larger parcel, 
the plan should indicate the boundaries of total 
land holding. 

√ √ √  

Elizabeth Gunden
Is this whole section on condominiums necessary?



SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS   
Item Description Sketch 

Plan 
Conceptual Plan Site 

Plan 
Narrative 

7 Size of property in net acreage (minus rights-of-
way), total acreage (to the nearest one-tenth 
acre), and square feet 

√ √ √  

8 Proximity to driveways serving adjacent parcels 
and to section corners and major thoroughfares. 

  √  

9 Zoning classification of applicant’s parcel and all 
abutting parcels. 

√ √ √  

10 A schedule for completing the project, including 
the phasing or timing of all proposed 
developments. 

   
Sketch 

Site 

11 Written description of proposed land use.    All 
12 Notation of any variances which have or must be 

secured. 
   All 

13 Identification and seal of architect, engineer, 
land surveyor, or landscape architect who 
prepared the plan. 

√ √ √  

14 Current proof of ownership of the land to be 
utilized or evidence of a contractual 
arrangement to acquire such land. 

   All 

Site Data   
15 Existing lot lines, building lines, structures, 

parking areas, and other improvements on the 
site and within 100 feet of the site. 

√ √ √  

16 Front, side, and rear setback dimensions. √ √ √  
17 Topography on the site and within 100 feet of 

the site at two-foot contour intervals, referenced 
to a U.S.G.S. benchmark. 

  √  

18 Proposed site plan features, including buildings, 
roadway widths and names, and parking areas. 

√ √ √  

19 Dimensions and centerlines of roads and road 
rights-of-way. 

  √  

20 Acceleration, deceleration, and passing lanes, 
where required. 

  √  

21 Proposed location of driveway entrances and on-
site driveways. 

  √  

22 Typical cross-section of proposed roads and 
driveways. 

  √  

23 Location of existing drainage courses, 
floodplains, lakes, and streams, with elevations. 

 √ √  

24 Location and dimensions of wetland areas. If 
deemed necessary because of site or soil 
conditions or because of the scope of the 
project, a detailed hydrology study may be 
required. 

 √ √  

25 Location of sidewalks within the site and within 
the right-of-way. 

 √ √  

26 Exterior lighting locations and method of 
shielding lights from shining off the site. 

  √  



SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS   
Item Description Sketch 

Plan 
Conceptual Plan Site 

Plan 
Narrative 

27 Trash receptacle and/or transformer pad 
locations and method of screening, if applicable. 

  √  

28 Parking spaces, typical dimensions of spaces, 
indication of total number of spaces (including 
information needed to calculate required 
parking in accordance with Zoning Code 
standards), drives, and method of surfacing. 

  √  

29 General landscape plan showing the location 
and type of lawn/groundcover, landscaped 
areas, trees, and other live plant material.  

√ √   

 Detailed landscape plan showing (1) the location 
of lawns and landscaped areas; (2) the location, 
size, type, and quantity of proposed shrubs, 
trees, and other live plant material; (3) the 
location, size, and type of existing trees five 
inches or greater in diameter, measured at one 
foot of the ground, before and after proposed 
development; and (4) cross section of proposed 
berms. 

  √  

30 Location and description of all easements for 
public right-of-way, utilities, access, shared 
access, and drainage. 

 √ √  

31 Designation of fire lanes.   √  
32 Loading / unloading area.   √  
33 The location of any outdoor storage of materials 

and method of screening. 
  √  

Building and Structure Details   
34 Location, height, and outside dimensions of all 

proposed buildings or structures. 
  √  

35 Indication of the number of stores and number 
of commercial or office units contained in the 
building. 

 √ √ All 

36 Building floor plans, including total floor area.   √  
37 Location, size, height, and lighting of all 

proposed signs. 
  √  

38 Proposed fences and walls, including typical 
cross-section and height above the ground on 
both sides. 

  √  



SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS   
Item Description Sketch 

Plan 
Conceptual Plan Site 

Plan 
Narrative 

39 Building facade elevations (scale: One (1) inch = 
four (4) feet). Elevations shall indicate type of 
building materials, roof design, projections, 
canopies, awnings and overhangs, screen walls 
and accessory building, and any outdoor or roof-
located mechanical equipment, such as air 
conditioning units, heating units, and 
transformers, including the method of screening 
such equipment. Such equipment shall be 
screened from view of adjacent properties and 
public rights-of-way. Such screening shall be 
designed to be perceived as an integral part of 
the building design. 

Only 
where 
façade 

changes 
are 

proposed 

 √  

Information Concerning Utilities, Drainage, and Related Issues   
40 Schematic layout of existing and proposed 

sanitary sewers and septic systems; water mains, 
well sites, and water service leads; hydrants that 
would be used by public safety personnel to 
service the site; and, the location of gas, electric, 
and telephone lines. 

 √ √  

41 Location of exterior drains, dry wells, catch 
basins, retention/ detention areas, sumps and 
other facilities designed to collect, store, or 
transport stormwater or wastewater. The point 
of discharge for all drains and pipes should be 
specified on the site plan. 

 √ √  

42 Indication of site grading and drainage patterns.  √ √  

Elizabeth Gunden
Not sure this is necessary.

Leah DuMouchel
What is the application for this? Is there a separate one?



SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS   
Item Description Sketch 

Plan 
Conceptual Plan Site 

Plan 
Narrative 

43 Information required for permission to 
commence any type of development within a 
flood hazard area: 

• The elevation in relation to mean sea 
level of the floor, including basement, 
of all structures. 

• A description of the extent to which any 
watercourse will be altered or relocated 
as a result of proposed development. 

• Proof of development permission from 
appropriate local, state, and federal 
agencies as required by this Zoning 
Code, including a floodplain permit, 
approval, or letter of no authority from 
the Michigan Department of Energy, 
Great Lakes, and the Environment under 
authority of Act 245 of the Public Acts 
of 1929, as amended by Act 167 of the 
Public Acts of 1968, the Flood Plain 
Regulatory Authority. 

• Base flood elevation data where the 
proposed development is subject to Act 
288 of the Public Acts of 1967, the 
Subdivision Control Act, or greater than 
five acres in size. 

   All 

44 Soil erosion and sedimentation control 
measures. 

  √ Site 

45 Proposed finish grades on the site, including the 
finish grades of all buildings, driveways, 
walkways, and parking lots. 

  √  

46 Listing of types and quantities of hazardous 
substances and polluting materials which will be 
used or stored on-site at the facility in quantities 
greater than twenty-five gallons per month. 

   All 

47 Areas to be used for the storage, use, 
loading/unloading, recycling, or disposal of 
hazardous substances and polluting materials, 
including interior and exterior areas and 
underground storage tank locations. 

  √  

48 Delineation of areas on the site which are 
known or suspected to be contaminated, 
together with a report on the status of site 
cleanup. 

  √  

Information Concerning Residential Development   
49 The number, type, and location of each type of 

residential unit (one-bedroom units, two-
bedroom units, etc.) and density calculations by 
type of residential unit (dwelling units per acre). 

 √ √ All 

50 Lot coverage calculations.   √  



SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS   
Item Description Sketch 

Plan 
Conceptual Plan Site 

Plan 
Narrative 

51 Floor plans of typical buildings with square feet 
of floor area. 

  √  

52 Garage and carport locations and details, if 
proposed. 

  √  

53 Pedestrian circulation system.  √ √  
54 Location and names of roads and internal drives 

with an indication of how the proposed 
circulation system will connect with the existing 
adjacent roads. The plan should indicate 
whether proposed roads are intended to be 
private or dedicated to the public. 

  √  

55 Community building location, dimensions, floor 
plans, and facade elevations, if applicable. 

  √  

56 Swimming pool fencing detail, including height 
and type of fence, if applicable. 

  √  

57 Location and size of recreation open areas, 
including an indication of type of recreation 
facilities proposed. 

  √  

Information Concerning Mobile Home Parks   
58 Location and number of pads for mobile homes.   √  
59 Distance between mobile homes.   √  
60 Proposed placement of mobile home on each 

lot. 
  √  

61 Average and range of size of mobile home lots.   √  
62 Density calculations (dwelling units per acre)   √  
63 Lot coverage calculations.   √  
64 Garage and carport locations and details, if 

proposed. 
  √  

65 Pedestrian circulation system.   √  
66 Location and names of roads and internal drives.   √  
67 Community building location, dimensions, floor 

plans, and facade elevations, if applicable. 
  √  

68 Swimming pool fencing detail, including height 
and type of fence, if applicable. 

  √  

69 Location and size of recreation open areas, 
including an indication of type of recreation 
facilities proposed. 

  √  

Information Concerning Condominium Development   
70 Condominium documents, including the 

proposed master deed, restrictive covenants, 
and condominium bylaws. 

   √ 

71 Condominium subdivision plan requirements, as 
specified in Section 66 of Public Act 59 of 1978, 
as amended, and Rule 401 of the Condominium 
Rules promulgated by the Michigan Department 
of Commerce, Corporation and Securities 
Bureau. 

  √  

 



(2) Items not applicable. If any of the items in the above-listed table are not applicable to a 
particular site, the following information shall be provided on the site plan: 
A. A list of each item considered not applicable. 
B. The reason(s) why each listed item is not considered applicable. 

(3) The Planning Commission, Building Superintendent, or other party authorized by the 
City may request any additional information it deems necessary in the review of the 
submitted site plan. 

(e) Site Plan Application Review Procedures. 
(1) Pre-Application Meeting. 

In order to facilitate processing of a site plan in a timely manner, the City provides 
opportunities for potential applicants to meet with and discuss 
development/redevelopment proposals with City officials and staff, which may include 
but is not limited to the Building Superintendent, City Planner, and City Engineer, for 
the purposes of obtaining information and guidance in the preparation of the required 
site plan and application materials. The applicant may, but is not required to, present 
drawings or site plans at a pre-application meeting, and no formal action shall be taken 
on a site plan submitted for pre-application meetings. The City Planner’s and City 
Engineer’s fees for any such pre-application conference shall be paid by the applicant. 
A. Optional. Any applicant may request a pre-application meeting to discuss land use 

proposals and site characteristics. 
B. Recommended. A pre-application meeting is strongly recommended for all 

proposed developments within the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
District and all Special Land Use applications.  

C. Required. A pre-application meeting is required for Planned Unit Development 
proposals. 

(2) Conceptual Review by Planning Commission. 
A. The Planning Commission will offer comments on a conceptual plan as described in 

1296.01(d), showing site arrangement, context, density, landscaping, circulation, 
drainage, and utilities.  

B. Conceptual site plan review is required for all special land use, planned unit 
development, condominium, and conditional rezoning projects.  

C. An applicant may file a written request for conceptual review in conjunction with 
any project requiring site plan review.  

D. Conceptual review fees shall be paid according to the fee schedule established by 
City Council. 

E. No formal action shall be taken on a site plan submitted for conceptual review, and 
neither the applicant nor the Planning Commission shall be bound by any 
comments or suggestions made during the course of the conceptual review. 

(3) Completeness Review. 
All required application materials shall be presented to the Building Superintendent’s 
office by the property owner or their designated agent at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the Planning Commission meeting where the site plan will be considered.  The Building 
Superintendent or designee shall review the application for completeness in order to 
determine if the application has been properly submitted and the applicant has 
corrected all deficiencies. Completeness reviews are solely for the purpose of 
determining whether the preliminary information required for submission of the 
application is sufficient to allow further processing, and shall not constitute a decision 
as to whether an application complies with the provisions of this Zoning Code. 



(4) Technical Review. 
A. Upon confirmation from the City Planner, City Engineer, City Attorney and other 

consultants and staff that the site plan substantially meets the requirements of this 
chapter, an additional ten copies of the site plan shall be submitted to the Building 
Department. The Commission may prepare forms and require the use of such forms 
in site plan preparation. A separate escrow deposit may be required for 
administrative charges to review the site plan submittal. 

B. Upon submission of all required application materials, the site plan proposal shall be 
distributed, at the option of the Building Superintendent, to the City Planner, City 
Engineer, City Attorney and other City consultants and staff for review. For site 
plans determined not to be in substantial compliance, the applicant may be required 
to complete revisions and re-submit the plans for further review prior to final action.  

C. Technical review shall result in a report submitted to the Planning Commission with 
the site plan review application. Once the technical review is complete, the 
application will be placed on the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission 
meeting. All required revisions must be completed prior to the site plan being 
placed on the Planning Commission agenda for review. 

(5) Administrative Review.  
The Building Superintendent or his or her designee may review and make a decision on 
a qualifying site plan review application that meets the standards of 1296.01(3)A.  

(6) Planning Commission Review. 
A. All applications for Site Plan Review except those eligible for Administrative Review 

shall be considered by the Planning Commission. Planning Commission review shall 
be required for all Special Land Use, Conditional Rezoning, and Planned Unit 
Development proposals. 

B. Public Hearing. A public hearing conducted by the Planning Commission is required 
for all site plans involving uses that are subject to special land use approval, 
applications for conditional rezoning, and planned unit developments. After 
payment of appropriate fees, the Building Superintendent or designee shall set the 
date of the public hearing. 

(7) City Council Review.  
Applications for Planned Unit Development and Conditional Rezoning which are 
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission shall be reviewed by City 
Council in accordance with the procedures set forth in Chapters 1288 and 1289 of this 
Zoning Code, respectively. 

(f) Site Plan Application Determinations.  
The Building Superintendent, Planning Commission, or City Council shall review the 
application and make a determination to approve the application, require any conditions it 
may find necessary, deny the application, or table the application. 
(1) Approval. Upon determination that a site plan is in compliance with the standards and 

requirements of this Section and other applicable ordinances and laws, approval shall be 
granted. 

(2) Conditional Approval. Upon determination that a site plan is in compliance except for 
minor modifications, the conditions for approval shall be identified and the applicant 
shall be given the opportunity to correct the site plan. The conditions may include the 
need to obtain variances or obtain approvals from other agencies. If a plan is approved 
subject to conditions, the applicant shall submit a revised plan with a revision date, 



indicating compliance with the conditions the Building Superintendent or Planning 
Consultant, for final approval stamp after conditions have been met. 

(3) Denial. Upon determination that a site plan does not comply with the standards and 
regulations set forth in this Chapter or elsewhere in this Section, or requires extensive 
revision in order to comply with said standards and regulations, site plan approval shall 
be denied. 

(4) Tabling. Upon determination that a site plan is not ready for approval or rejection, or 
upon a request by the applicant, the Planning Commission may table consideration of a 
site plan until a future meeting. 

(g) Record of Actions.  
The City shall keep a record of decisions on all site plans on file in the City Hall. The record 
shall include the following information: 
(1) Minutes. All minutes from any meeting where the site plan was considered. 
(2) Finding of Fact. The decision on a site plan review shall be incorporated in a finding of 

fact relative to the land use under consideration and shall specify the basis for the 
decision and any conditions imposed. 

(3) Final Site Plans. An electronic PDF version and a full-size print set (24” x 36”) of the final 
site plans stamped by a licensed architect, landscape architect, or civil engineer. 
A. Three (3) copies of the application and approved plans shall be stamped APPROVED 

and signed by the Building Superintendent or City Planner. One marked copy shall 
be returned to the applicant and the other two copies will be kept on file in the City 
Hall. 

(4) Development Agreement. An approved site plan shall include a site plan development 
agreement outlining the approved use, any applicable conditions, and procedural 
process. The development agreement shall be signed by the applicant and the Planning 
Commission Chair. 

(h) Procedure After Site Plan Approval. 
(1) Application for Building Permit. 

A. Following final approval of the site plan and the engineering plans, the applicant 
may apply for a building permit. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to 
obtain all other applicable City, County, or State permits and approvals prior to 
issuance of a building permit. 

B. A building permit for a structure in a proposed condominium project shall not be 
issued until evidence of a recorded master deed has been provided to the City. 
However, the Building Superintendent may issue permits for site grading, erosion 
control, installation of public water and sewage facilities, and construction of roads, 
prior to recording the master deed. No permit issued or work undertaken prior to 
recording of the master deed pursuant to this section shall grant any rights or any 
expectancy interest in the approval of the master deed. 

(2) Expiration of Site Plan Approval. If construction has not commenced within twelve (12) 
months of final approval of the site plan, or if construction has not been completed 
within twelve (12) months after it was commenced, the site plan approval becomes null 
and void and a new application for site plan review shall be required. The Building 
Superintendent may grant an extension of up to twelve (12) months, upon written 
request from the applicant, if his or her designee finds that the approved site plan 
adequately represents current conditions on and surrounding the site and provided that 
the site plan conforms to the current Zoning Code standards. 



(3) Application for Certificate of Occupancy. Following completion of site work and 
building construction, the applicant may apply for a certificate of occupancy or a 
temporary certificate of occupancy from the Building Superintendent. It shall be the 
applicant's responsibility to obtain these required certificates prior to any occupancy of 
the property. 

(4) Property Maintenance After Approval. 
A. It shall be the responsibility of the owner of a property for which site plan approval 

has been granted to maintain the property in accordance with the approved site 
design on a continuing basis until the property is razed, or until new zoning 
regulations supersede the regulations upon which site plan approval was based, or 
until a new site design is approved. Any property owner who fails to so maintain an 
approved site design shall be deemed in violation of the use provisions of this 
Section and shall be subject to the same penalties appropriate for a use violation. 

B. With respect to condominium projects, the master deed shall contain provisions 
describing the responsibilities of the condominium association, condominium 
owners, and public entities, with regard to maintenance of the property in 
accordance with the approved site plan on a continuing basis. The master deed shall 
further establish the means of permanent financing for required maintenance and 
improvement activities which are the responsibility of the condominium association. 
Failure to maintain an approved site plan shall be deemed in violation of the use 
provisions of this Section and shall be subject to the same penalties appropriate for 
a use violation. 

(5) Recorded and As-Built Condominium Documents. 
A. Upon approval of the site plan for a condominium project involving new 

construction, the condominium project developer or proprietor shall furnish the City 
with the following: 
1. One (1) copy of the recorded master deed, and 
2. One (1) copy of any condominium bylaws and restrictive covenants. 

B. Upon completion of the project, the condominium project developer or proprietor 
shall furnish the city with the following: 
1. Two (2) copies of an “as built survey”, and 
2. One (1) copy of the site plan on a mylar sheet of at least thirteen (13) by sixteen 

(16) inches with an image not to exceed ten and one-half (10 ½) by fourteen 
(14) inches. 

C. The as-built survey shall be reviewed by the City Engineer for compliance with City 
ordinances. Fees for this review shall be established by the City Council. 

(6) Revocation. Approval of a site plan may be revoked by the Planning Commission or 
Building Superintendent if construction is not in conformance with the approved plans. 
In this case, at the discretion of the Building Superintendent, the site plan shall be 
placed on the agenda of the Planning Commission for consideration and written notice 
shall be sent to the applicant at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting. The Building 
Superintendent, applicant, and any other interested persons shall be given the 
opportunity to present information to the Planning Commission and answer questions. 
If the Planning Commission finds that a violation exists and has not been remedied prior 
to the hearing, then it shall revoke the approval of the site plan. 

(i) Amendments and Modifications.  
A site plan approved in accordance with the provisions in this section may be subsequently 
modified, subject to the following requirements: 

Leah DuMouchel
Can this be integrated into the other table?



(1) Minor Modifications. 
A. Minor modifications to an approved site plan may be reviewed by the City Building 

Superintendent or his or her designee. 
B. Minor modifications are changes that do not substantially affect the character or 

intensity of the use, vehicular or pedestrian circulation, drainage patterns, the 
demand for public services, or the vulnerability to hazards. Examples of minor 
modifications include, but are not limited to: 
1. An addition to an existing commercial or industrial building that does not 

increase or decrease the floor space by more than 25% or 3,000 square feet, 
whichever is less. 

2. Re-occupancy of a vacant building that has been unoccupied for less than 
twelve (12) months. 

3. Changes to building height that do not add an additional floor. 
4. Additions or alterations to the landscape plan or landscape materials. 
5. Relocation or screening of a trash receptacle. 
6. Alterations to the internal parking layout of an off-street lot. 

C. Determination of Minor Modification. The Building Superintendent, or his or her 
designee, shall determine if the proposed modifications are minor in accordance 
with the guidelines in this Section. In order to make the determination, the Building 
Superintendent shall solicit comments and recommendations from the Planner, 
Engineer, and public safety officials, as deemed necessary. 

(2) Major Modifications. 
A. If the modifications are not deemed minor by the Building Superintendent, then full 

review, and approval by the Planning Commission shall be required. 
B. Planning Commission review shall be required for all site plans that involve a request 

for a variance, a special land use, conditional rezoning, and planned unit 
development proposal that involves a discretionary decision, or a proposal that 
involves a nonconforming use or structure. 

C. Examples of major modifications include, but are not limited to: 
1. The construction of a new building or structure. 
2. The addition or deletion of parking. 
3. The addition of curb cuts onto a public road. 

(3) Recording of Action.  
A. Each action related to modification of a site plan shall be duly recorded in writing 

on a copy of the approved plan and shall be kept on file in the office of the Building 
Superintendent.  

B. The Planning Commission shall be advised of all minor site plan modifications 
approved by the Building Superintendent and such modifications shall be noted on 
the site plan and in the minutes of the Planning Commission. 

(j) Fees and Performance Guarantees. 
(1) Fees. Fees for the review of site plans and inspections as required by this section shall be 

established and may be amended by resolution by the City Council. 
(2) Performance Guarantees. Performance guarantees shall be required subject to the 

standards in Section 1262.09.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDEVELOPMENT  
OPPORTUNITIES 

CITY OF 
LINCOLN 

PARK 



 

RESIDENTIAL  
Redevelopment Opportunities  

 

 

Below is a list of City-owned parcels that are suitable for residential development. The parcels are 
separated into categories based on the size of the lot frontages. Nonconforming parcels that do not meet 
either minimum lot frontage or minimum area requirements are not included in this list. Instead, those 
nonconforming parcels are best suited for either stormwater management purposes or combination with 
another parcel of an adjacent property owner. 

 

 

 

  



 

RESIDENTIAL REDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

Map 
Number 

Address Parcel Number Acres Zoning Frontage 
Maximum 
Building 

Footprint* 

Potential 
Future 
SEV** 

Maximum 
Structure(s)*** 

Complete 

40'<50' Lot Frontage (Single Family) or 20'<50' (Multifamily) 

1 Electric 45007080051002 0.07 MFRD 29 1,220 $33,460  
4 Three-
Bedroom 

Apartments 
  

2 Goddard 45020060311000 0.08 MFRD 34 1,394 $34,338  
5 Three-
Bedroom 

Apartments 
  

3 Longtin 45022070057000 0.08 MFRD 34.9 1,394 $34,338  
5 Three-
Bedroom 

Apartments 
  

4 Washington 45007010033000 0.1 SFRD 41.5 1,812 $36,445  
3,625 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

5 River Dr 45020020008001 0.18 SFRD 43.6 3,179 $43,338  
6,359 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

6 River Drive 45020020007001 0.17 SFRD 43.9 2,962 $42,243  
5,924 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

50'<60' Lot Frontage (Single Family & Multifamily) 

7 LeBlanc 45019040081000 0.1 SFRD 54.3 14,258 $99,198  
28,515 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home   

8 1205 Chandler 45002060188002 0.5 SFRD 59 1,826 $36,516  
3,652 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home   
60'<70' Lot Frontage (Single Family & Multifamily) 

9 1225 Chandler 45002060185000 0.14 SFRD 60 1826 $36,516  
5,039 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

10 Austin 45007100044002 0.13 SFRD 64 2520 $40,015  
4,432 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

11 Ferris 45007100053001 0.15 SFRD 66.3 2231 $38,558  
5,217 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

>70' Lot Frontage (Single Family & Multifamily) 

12 Marion 45007020148002 0.26 SFRD 70.5 4,547 $50,235  
9,093 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

13 Cloverlawn 45020080015002 0.31 SFRD 71.6 5,367 $54,369  
10,733 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

14 917 Park 45008030226000 0.19 SFRD 75 3,249 $43,690  
6,498 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

15 
1418 Warwick 

Ave 
45006040193300 0.22 SFRD 89.9 3,841 $46,675  

7,682 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

16 River Drive 45008040099000 0.06 SFRD 97.1 1,079 $32,749  
2,158 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  



RESIDENTIAL REDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

Map 
Number 

Address Parcel Number Acres Zoning Frontage 
Maximum 
Building 

Footprint* 

Potential 
Future 
SEV** 

Maximum 
Structure(s)*** 

Complete 

17 Fort Park 45009090088000 0.23 SFRD 98.3 4,087 $47,916  
8,175 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

18 Kings 45019011053000 0.19 SFRD 102 3,267 $43,781  
6,534 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

19 Outer Drive 45004010043000 0.5 SFRD 103.6 8,710 $71,225  
17,421 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

20 Chandler 45007090050000 0.11 SFRD 105.1 1,858 $36,677  
3,716 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

21 Saint Johns 45022020125000 0.1 MFRD 106.3 1,742 $36,092  
6,970 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

22 White 45008030323000 0.11 SFRD 108 1,878 $36,778  
3,757 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

23 1340 Wilson 45007020209000 0.1 SFRD 108 1,698 $35,870  
3,397 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

24 Austin 45007090040002 0.14 SFRD 114.6 2,400 $39,410  
4,799 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

25 LeJeune 45001010113000 0.3 SFRD 119 5,299 $54,027  
10,598 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

26 Harrison 45020040041000 0.41 SFRD 124.9 7,219 $63,707  
14,438 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

27 Cloverlawn 45020030112000 0.33 SFRD 129.3 5,663 $55,862  
11,327 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

28 1356 Electric 45007030005000 1.17 MFRD 185 20,386 $130,095  
70-80 Three-

Bed 
Apartments 

  

29 1035 Lincoln 45009030263000 0.34 SFRD 185 5,998 $57,551  
11,515 sq. ft. 
Single-Family 

Home 
  

*Estimated using maximum lot coverages specified in the Lincoln Park Zoning Ordinance (sq. ft.) 

**Estimated using a linear extrapolation of building sq. ft. and SEV from existing residential structures in Lincoln Park 

***Estimated from the schedule of regulations in the Lincoln Park Zoning Ordinance & Maximum Building Footprint 

 

 



 



 

COMMERCIAL  

Redevelopment Opportunities 

 

 

Below is a list of City-owned parcels that are suitable for commercial development. 

 

  



 

COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

Map 
Number 

Address Parcel Number Acres Zoning Frontage 
Maximum 

Building Size* 
Potential 

Future SEV** 
Complete 

1 O'Connor 45006040286000 0.07 CBD 29.9 3,098 $357,145    
2 1305 Euclid 45006040308000 0.07 CBD 29.9 3,168 $357,712    

3 1304 Hanford 45003080555000 0.08 CBD 35 3,692 $361,956    

4 1303 Hanford 45003080535000 0.09 CBD 36 3,827 $363,049    

5 1657 Fort 45007050015001 0.07 CBD 40 3,043 $356,699    

6 1661 Fort 45007050017001 0.07 CBD 40 3,064 $356,869    

7 1212 Fort 45003050036000 0.09 NBD 40 2,000 $348,252    

8 Warwick 45006040212000 0.14 CBD 44 6,241 $382,600    

9 1673 Fort 45007050020001 0.11 CBD 60 4,654 $369,747    

10 Fort 45009080001000 0.17 CBD 60 7,378 $391,808    

11 1303 Cicotte 45003080590000 0.17 CBD 69.3 7,551 $393,210    

12 O'Connor 45006040237000 0.22 CBD 89.9 9,468 $408,735    
13 1355 Cleophus 45009090078000 0.32 CBD 97.9 14,020 $445,602    

14 1355 Southfield 45009090007001 0.27 CBD 107.8 11,610 $426,083    

15 Russell 45006040379300 0.34 CBD 122.3 14,639 $450,615    

16 Russell 45006040425300 0.35 CBD 124.2 15,170 $454,916    

17 1427 Cleophus 45009090093000 2.31 CBD 124.3 100,645 $1,147,178    

18 Fort Park 45009070006000 0.51 CBD 167.4 22,057 $510,694    

19 1393 Southfield 45009090071001 0.54 CBD 216 23,322 $520,939    

20 Outer Drive 45002010052309 0.42 RBD 228 13,543 $441,739    

21 Fort 45006060278000 0.3 CBD 246 13,050 $437,746    

22 Southfield 45006990003000 0.89 CBD 246.8 38,585 $644,554    

23 Arlington 45006040141000 0.29 CBD 343.7 12,518 $433,437    

24 Warwick 45006040166000 0.29 CBD 345 12,621 $434,271    

25 Keppen 45006040450300 0.33 CBD 484.3 14,302 $447,886    

26 Euclid 45006040354300 0.33 CBD 487.9 14,534 $449,765    

*Estimated using maximum lot coverages specified in the Lincoln Park Zoning Ordinance (sq. ft.) 

**Estimated using a linear extrapolation of building sq. ft. and SEV from existing commercial structures in Lincoln Park 

 

 



 



 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT  
Redevelopment Opportunities 

 

 

Below is a list of City-owned parcels that are suitable for stormwater management because of their 
presence in a FEMA-designated floodplain or because of their proximity to parcels that experienced 
flooding in 2019. 

 

 

  



STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

Map Number Address Parcel Number Acres Zoning Frontage Complete 

1 Chandler 45002060177002 0.01 SFRD 5   

2 River Drive 45008040665003 0.01 CSD 15.1   

3 Southfield 45009010100001 0.01 MBD 45   

4 Harrison 45020040139002 0.02 SFRD 19.3   

5 Cloverlawn 45020080017003 0.02 SFRD 123.8   

6 Southfield 45008030027001 0.04 MBD 64.5   

7 Bailey 45014020598000 0.04 SFRD 18.8   

8 Champaign 45013020291000 0.05 SFRD 20   

9 Saint Johns 45022020147000 0.05 SFRD 111   

10 Park 45008030121000 0.06 SFRD 29.4   

11 Park 45008030122000 0.06 SFRD 28.5   

12 Grant 45001040088000 0.07 CSD 28.8   

13 Arlington 45006030192002 0.07 SFRD 29.9   

14 Russell 45006040409000 0.07 SFRD 30   

15 Park 45008030123000 0.07 SFRD 29.9   

16 Park 45008030318000 0.07 SFRD 29   

17 Park 45008030319000 0.07 SFRD 28.3   

18 Park 45008030124000 0.07 SFRD 102   

19 River Drive 45008040100000 0.07 SFRD 97.9   

20 1318 Hanford 45003080558000 0.08 SFRD 35   

21 Morris 45003080756000 0.08 SFRD 35   

22 1420 Montie 45003090048000 0.08 SFRD 34.9   
23 1415 Rio 45003090077301 0.08 SFRD 35   
24 1419 Rio 45003090078302 0.08 SFRD 35   

25 1464 College 45003100257000 0.08 SFRD 35   

26 1458 Morris 45003100274000 0.08 SFRD 35   

27 1770 O'Connor 45005030218000 0.08 SFRD 35   

28 Saint Johns 45021070110000 0.08 SFRD 29.9   

29 Agnes 45022070074000 0.08 SFRD 34.9   

30 Paris 45003080700300 0.09 SFRD 34.8   

31 1848 Paris 45004010251000 0.09 SFRD 38.5   

32 Saint Johns 45021070096001 0.09 SFRD 36   

33 Saint Johns 45021070114000 0.09 SFRD 37.2   

34 O'Connor 45005030193300 0.09 SFRD 100   

35 White 45008030322000 0.09 SFRD 55.1   

36 River Drive 45008040299002 0.1 CSD 38   

37 College 45003080738000 0.17 SFRD 35   

 



 



 

PARCEL COMBINATION  
Redevelopment Opportunities  

 

 

Below is a list of City-owned parcels that should be offered to adjacent property owners and combined 
into existing parcels because they are one of the following: (1) too small to redevelop, (2) not in a FEMA-
designated floodplain, or (3) in an area that experienced flooding in 2019. 

 

 

  



 

PARCEL COMBINATION REDEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

Map Number Address Parcel Number Acres Zoning Frontage Complete 

1 Fort 45009040070000 <0.01 SFRD 1   

2 Fort 45009040071000 0.01 SFRD 1   

3 Mill 45009060132000 0.01 SFRD 2.8   

4 Fort 45007050014001 0.03 CBD 19.9   

5 1667 Fort 45007050019001 0.04 CBD 20   

6 Fort Park 45006040145001 0.05 CBD 20   

7 1560 Fort 45006060210000 0.05 CBD 20   
8 Fort Park 45009090085000 0.05 SFRD 20   
9 Electric 45007030007000 0.06 CBD 1   

10 573 Park 45008030279000 0.07 SFRD 30.1   

11 2054 Chandler 45009010050000 0.07 SFRD 30.9   

12 Electric 45012060334000 0.07 SFRD 37.3   

13 1573 Pagel 45016020639002 0.07 SFRD 29.9   

14 1606 Fort Park 45006040244000 0.07 SFRD 103.9   

15 605 Cleophus 45008030105000 0.07 SFRD 130.7   

16 2086 White 45010040210000 0.08 SFRD 29.9   

17 Garfield 45009100037001 0.08 SFRD 185.4   

18 2106 Fort Park 45009090086000 0.09 SFRD 39.9   

19 Fort 45012030371001 0.09 CSD 19.9   

20 Coolidge 45022040048301 0.09 SFRD 150   

21 Garfield 45009030112002 0.12 SFRD 34.9   

22 1035 Lincoln 45009030263000 0.34 SFRD 420.1   

23 Electric 45007990002001 0.59 - 1   

 

 



 



1 
 

City of Lincoln Park 

Updated Sign Code: What’s New? 

 
Overview 

The City of Lincoln Park recently adopted an updated sign code. The code has been reorganized so 
that it is clearer, more consistent, and easier to use. Many signs which were previously illegal, such 
as pole or pylon signs, are now permitted. New types of temporary signs, such as windows signs, 
are now also permitted. This document summarizes the sign type regulations within the updated 
code, explains how sign types may be combined on a single parcel, and outlines the permitting and 
application process. 

Updated Regulations: A Summary 

The updated sign code includes tables that clearly identify the standards for each sign type.  All sign 
types are classified as either permanent or temporary, and each sign type has its own table with the 
following standards clearly spelled out:  

• Districts where the sign type is permitted • Material and construction standards  
• Maximum area • Whether electronic display is permitted 
• Height standards  • Whether a permit is required 
• Any additional dimensional requirements  • Time limits 
• Number permitted • Any additional standards 
• Setback requirements   

 

Permitting Process 

In general, a sign permit is required before erecting, relocating, or modifying a sign in any way. 
Modification includes replacing a sign face and adding or converting to any form of electronic 
display. The tables of standards for each sign type indicate whether a permit is required.  In short, 
all permanent sign types require a sign permit, and most temporary or portable sign types require a 
temporary sign permit, excluding temporary window signs, vehicle signs, wire-frame yard signs, 
balloons and balloon signs, window lighting, and festoons.  

Sign permit applications are available at the Building Department office.  Required sign application 
information includes sign construction plans, a sketch plan showing sign location(s), and other 
pertinent information.  The Building Official will review the application and will issue a permit when 
all applicable standards are met.  
 

Implementation and Enforcement 

For businesses to have an adequate amount of time to acclimate to the new sign regulations, 
implementation and enforcement of the updated relations will occur in stages. Enforcement of the 
new sign ordinance will begin in October of 2020, six months after the City Council approved the 
ordinance. This should allow business owners time to remove existing signs that are either not in 
use or are no longer permitted, which includes feather signs and unsafe roof signs. Beginning in 



2 
 

October 2020, the City will begin enforcing the new sign regulations and will fine businesses for 
signs that do not meet current standards. The six-month grace period does not apply for any new 
signs – all new signs must follow the application procedures and standards outlined in the new sign 
ordinance.  

Overview of Updated Sign Standards 

The following tables summarize the main standards for permanent and temporary sign types, 
though are in no way meant to encompass all required standards for each sign type. 

 
TEMPORARY & PORTABLE SIGNS 

 

 

Signs Not Permitted 

• Roof Signs • Feather Flag Signs  
• Suspended (Bracket) Signs • People Signs 
• Inflatable Signs  

Sign Type 
Maximum 

Area 
Maximum 

Height 
Number 

Permitted 
Additional Provisions 

Banner Signs 
(freestanding 
& building) 

6 sq. ft. / 
building 

frontage, max. 
120 sq. ft. 

6 ft. 
(freestanding) 

Not above 
building 

roof (building) 

1 per parcel • 60-day time limit, only 10 days when 
attached to awning or marquee 

• 2 permits per parcel per calendar year 
• Additional material and distance 

between banner signs requirements 
Window 
Signs 

6 sq. ft. N/A None within 
max. area 

• Only allowed on windows on same 
building face as principal entrance 

A-Frame 
Signs 

6 sq. ft. 3.5 ft. 1 per parcel • 60-day time limit – must be removed at 
end of each business day 

• 3 permits per parcel per calendar year 
Vehicle Signs N/A N/A 2 per 

licensed 
vehicle 

• Must be parked in designated off-street 
parking areas of business 

Yard Signs, 
Wire-Frame 

6 sq. ft. 3 ft. 2 per parcel 
(3 per parcel 

in SFRD & 
MHRD) 

• Additional standards apply for the 
period of 60 days before and 14 days 
after an election, depending on district 

• 60-day time limit 
Yard Signs, 
Rigid-Frame 

16 ft. 6 ft. 1 per parcel • 30-day time limit 
• 3 permits per parcel per calendar year 

Balloons & 
Balloon 
Signs 

24-in. diameter 35 ft. 1 bunch of 
12 balloons 
or fewer per 

business 

• Must be attached to building or placed 
within 1 ft. of building 

• Must be removed once deflated or 
damaged 

Window 
Lighting 

N/A Limited to 
1st floor 

4 windows / 
doors 

• Allowed around window / door 
perimeter on 1st floor 

Festoons N/A N/A 2 per parcel • Must be removed if damaged 



3 
 

PERMANENT SIGNS 
 

Sign Type 
Maximum 

Area 
Maximum 

Height 
Number 

Permitted 
Additional Provisions 

Permanent Freestanding Signs 
Pole Signs 80 sq. ft. 20 ft. 1 per parcel 

(max. 2 with 
approval) 

• Special provisions for shopping centers 
and parcels within 100’ of a major 
highway 

Monument 
Signs 

80 sq. ft.  
(60 sq. ft. in 

CBD) 

8 ft.  
(6 ft. in 
CBD) 

1 per parcel 
(max. 2 with 

approval) 

• Special provisions for shopping centers 
• Must use same materials as principal 

building or have landscaping 
Entranceway 
Signs 

50% of 
entranceway 
structure (up 
to 40 sq. ft.) 

District 
height 

limitations 

2 per 
entranceway 

• Signs must remain inside of 
entranceway structure 

Permanent Building Signs 
Wall Signs 3 sq. ft. / 

building 
frontage up to 

district 
maximum 

Depends on 
district 
height 

limitations 

1 per parcel 
(max. 2 with 

approval) 

• Additional wall signs permitted for 
parking lot signs, alley signs, and 
buildings adjacent to I-75 

• Districts have varying max. size limits 
• 1 wall sign per building face 
• Additional standards in CBD 

Window or 
Door Signs 

10% of 
window / door 
area, max. 4 

sq. ft. 

N/A 1 per 
business 

• Window transparency standards 
• Silk screened or hand painted in CBD 

Marquee 
Signs 

3.5 sq. ft. / 
building 

frontage, max. 
40 sq. ft. 

10 ft. 
vertical 

clearance 

1 per parcel • Only permitted in CBD 
• May not extend above base of 2nd floor 

windowsill or above roofline 

Awning 
Signs 

3 sf per linear 
foot of 
building 

frontage, max. 
40 sq. ft. 

10 ft. 
vertical 

clearance 

2 per 
business 

• 2nd story business: max. 4 sq. ft. 
• Max. 6 ft. projection from building 

Projecting 
Signs 

7.5 sq. ft. 10 ft. 
vertical 

clearance 

1 per 
business 

• Permitted in CBD and NBD for 
buildings built to property line 

• Must be perpendicular to building 
Canopy 
Signs 

4 sq. ft. District 
height 

limitations 

2 per canopy • Only permitted in MBD and RBD 

Billboard Signs 
Billboards 72 sq. ft. 20 ft. Must be 500 

ft. between 
billboards 

• Electronic display is permitted, but may 
not have any movable parts 

• No stacking of billboards 
 



4 
 

 

Sign Combination 

Multiple sign types may exist on a single property, though some limitations exist.  

• A property may have either a pole sign or a monument sign, but not both. It is possible, 
however, for the building official to grant special approval for a maximum of two permanent 
freestanding signs per parcel. 

• The number of permanent building signs (i.e. wall signs, projecting signs, awning signs, etc.) 
allowed on a property is independent of the number of permanent freestanding signs allowed 
on a property.  For instance, it is permissible for a property to have both a monument sign and 
a wall sign. 

• Temporary and portable signs are independent of permanent signs, though they are subject to 
the time limitations outlined for each temporary / portable sign type. 

 

QUESTIONS? 

For more information, please contact: 

Leah DuMouchel, AICP 
City of Lincoln Park Planner of Record 
ldumouchel@bria2.com  |  734.239.6616 

 

CITY OF 
LINCOLN 

PARK 

mailto:ldumouchel@bria2.com

	0 Agenda - rev
	0.1 LPPC - Zoom Meeting Information
	City of Lincoln Park Planning and Development
	Zoom Planning Commission Meeting

	5B Ordinance Amendment Proposal - Waste Management
	City of Lincoln Park Planning and Development
	Ordinance Amendment Proposal: Waste Management
	April 14, 2020


	6A1 1805 Papalas - MBD to GID - RZ
	1805 Papalas
	Zoning Amendment (Rezoning) Review
	Request
	Recommendation


	6A2 1805 Papalas - Submittal
	LP conditional rezoning request - summary.pdf
	LOTS 1A - 3.pdf
	LincolnPark-GreenPark-RezoningSet.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LicolnPark-MM-Retail-SitePlan-AS1.0 Site Plan
	LicolnPark-MM-Retail-SitePlan-AS2.0 Site Plan
	LicolnPark-MM-Retail-SitePlan-A1.0 Graphic Site Plan
	LicolnPark-MM-Retail-SitePlan-A2.0 Perspective
	LicolnPark-MM-Retail-SitePlan-A3.0 Perspective
	LicolnPark-MM-Retail-SitePlan-A4.0 Perspective



	6A3 1805 Papalas - Rezoning application - confirmation
	6A4 1805 Papalas - PPC20-0002_PETITION FOR REZONING
	6C1 3476 Fort - Massage - SPR
	3476 Fort – Massage Facility
	Site Plan Review
	General
	Project and Site Description
	Site conditions

	Master Plan
	Future Land Use Classification
	The Future Land Use classification for this parcel is General Commercial.
	Intent; Desirable Uses and Elements

	General commercial properties are intended to serve the whole community and are located along major thoroughfares.
	Land Use and Zoning
	Zoning
	Proposed and Existing Uses

	Site Plan Documents
	Dimensional Standards

	Building design
	Preservation of significant natural features
	Sidewalks, pedestrian and bicycle circulation
	Parking
	Barrier-free access
	Loading
	Access, driveways, and vehicular circulation
	Emergency vehicle access
	Streets
	Landscaping, screening, and open space
	Soil erosion control
	Utilities
	Stormwater management
	Lighting
	Noise
	Mechanical equipment
	Signs
	Hazardous materials or waste
	Site design standards for uses permitted after special approval
	Other agency reviews
	Variances
	Recommendations
	Findings
	Conditions and Waivers
	Waivers
	Conditions to be addressed before final approval
	Conditions of approval

	Recommendations



	6C2 3476 Fort St 1st PC Review June 8, 2020r
	6C3 3476 Fort - Massage - Planset
	A-101 - EXISTING SITE PLAN - ELEVATION-30X42 - 04.01.2020.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	30X42


	3476 FORT ST_FULL PLANS.pdf
	1
	2
	e1
	m1

	3476 Fort St_Floor Plan.pdf
	3476 Fort St_Site Plan Application.pdf

	6C4 3476 Fort St_Site Plan Application
	7A Section 1296.01_PROPOSED_draft1
	1296.01 SITE PLAN REVIEW.
	(a) Purpose and Intent.
	A. Compliance with this Zoning Code;
	A. To promote the orderly development/redevelopment of the City through an open and predictable review process;.
	A. To promote the stability of land values and investments and the general welfare;
	A. To help prevent the impairment or depreciation of land values and development/redevelopment by the erection of structures or additions thereto without property attention to siting and appearance;
	A. To require the gradual upgrade of existing site that do not conform with current standards of this Zoning Code; and
	A. To ensure that the arrangement, location, design and materials within a site are consistent with the character of the City and with the goals and design guidelines in the MasterComprehensive Development Plan.

	(b) General RequirementsApplicability and Authority.
	(a) Authority to Approve Site Plans.
	(a) Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall have authority to grant final approval of the site plans for the uses identified in (b)(1) of this Section.
	(a) Building Superintendent. The Building Superintendent or his or her designee shall have authority to administratively review and approve site plan, or sketch plans where applicable, for the following uses:
	(a) Authority to Approve Site Plans.
	(a) Building Superintendent. Building Superintendent. The Building Superintendent or his or her designee shall have authority to review and approve site plans, or sketch plans where applicable, for the following uses in accordance with subsection (e) ...
	(a) An increase in floor area of building up to 1,000 square feet or 5% of existing floor area, whichever is less, with no required increase in parking area (only if the total number of expansions within the last five years, as determined by the Build...
	(a) A new use that is a principal permitted use in zoning district and requires no significant changes to the building footprint, facade, parking, landscaping, lighting, signs, or vehicular access.
	(a) An expansion, replacing or alteration of landscaping areas consistent with the requirements of this Zoning Code.
	(a) Improvements or installation of walls, fences, lighting or curbing consistent with the requirements of this Zoning Code.
	(a) Alterations to the off-street parking layout or installation of pavement or curbing improvements, except for Off-Street Parking A Areas, provided the total number of spaces shall remain constant, and the construction plans and lot construction are...
	(a) Relocation of a waste receptacle to a more inconspicuous location, or the installation of screening, both consistent with the requirements of this Zoning Code.
	(a) Changes to a facade, architectural features or wall signs, provided such changes are consistent with the requirements of this Zoning Code and do not significantly and materially change the appearance of the building. (An elevation plan showing cha...
	(a) A change from a nonconforming use, building or site to a more conforming situation consistent with the requirements of this Zoning Code.
	(a) Modifications to upgrade a building to improve barrier-free design, comply with Americans with Disabilities Act or other federal, state or county regulations.
	(a) Changes in use, as defined in this Zoning Code, that do not increase the gross floor area, provided all other improvements are consistent with the requirements of this Zoning Code.
	(a) Internal construction or change in the floor plan for a conforming use that does not increase gross floor area, provided the construction cost over a twelve month period does not exceed 50% of the building's state equalized value or affect parking...
	(a) Repairing, resurfacing, re-striping or curbing of parking lots.
	(a) Construction or erection of signs, retaining walls, fences, waste receptacles, sidewalks, antennae, lights, poles, cooling/heating or other mechanical equipment, telephone booth, newspaper boxes, landscaping or similar structures which conform to ...
	(a) Modifications or amendments to an approved site plan, subject to paragraph (e)(6)H. hereof.
	(a) Approval of accessory uses associated with uses provided by right in the zoning district.
	(a) Bike path, pathway or sidewalk construction or relocation.
	(a) Grading, excavation, filling, soil removal, creation of ponds or clearing of trees within an area up to 100 square-feet on a lot occupied by a residential dwelling.
	(a) Re-occupancy of a building that has been vacant for more than thirty days, where the proposed use will be conducted fully within an enclosed building and re-occupancy will not require significant additional parking demands, access changes or other...
	(a) Land division of un-platted land.
	(a) Other similar applications that are subject to administrative review and do not require a public hearing under state law.
	(a) Planning Commission. Except as specified above in paragraph (c)(1), the Planning Commission shall have authority to grant final approval of the site plans for the following uses in accordance with subsection (e) hereof.
	(a) Any building or structure in any zoning district for any principal permitted use in the City;
	(a) Any land use requiring special approval, conditional rezoning or any planned unit development.
	(c) Standards for Site Plan Approval.
	(d) Site Plan Application Requirements.
	(a) All site plan drawings shall be submitted on sheets twenty-four (24) by thirty-six (36) inches and in digital PDF format.
	(a) An application for site plan review, supplied by the Building Department, shall be submitted to the Building Superintendent, along with the required application fee and six (6) copies of the site plan.
	(a) Sketch Plan Contents. The sketch plan for administrative approval shall contain the following information, unless the Building Superintendent or his or her designee determines that some of the required information is not reasonably necessary:
	(a)
	(a)
	(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the final sketchite plan, reduced in size to eight and one-half (8 ½) by fourteen (14) inches.
	(a)
	(e) Site Plan Application Review Procedures.
	Applications for Planned Unit Development and Conditional Rezoning which are recommended for approval by the Planning Commission shall be reviewed by City Council in accordance with the procedures set forth in Chapters 1288 and 1289 of this Zoning Cod...
	(f) Site Plan Application Determinations.
	(g) Record of Actions.
	(h) Procedure After Site Plan Approval.
	(i) Amendments and Modifications.
	(j) Fees and Performance Guarantees.


	7B City of Lincoln Park_Redevelopment Opportunities-2020-05-05
	RESIDENTIAL  Redevelopment Opportunities
	COMMERCIAL  Redevelopment Opportunities
	STORMWATER MANAGEMENT  Redevelopment Opportunities
	PARCEL COMBINATION  Redevelopment Opportunities

	7C Updated Sign Code_Educational Handout
	Overview
	Updated Regulations: A Summary
	Permitting Process
	Implementation and Enforcement
	Overview of Updated Sign Standards
	Sign Combination
	QUESTIONS?




